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The financial year 2008-2009 was a challenging year for the
Group. The Group recorded total revenues of approximately
HK$746,000,000 in this financial year, around 21% lower
than those of approximately HK$941,000,000 in the
corresponding period of last year. The Group recorded a net
loss of approximately HK$64,747,000 in this financial year.

The decline in turnover and profit is mainly due to (i) the sales
reduction caused by the global economic downturn; (ii) the
depreciation of other Asian currencies which affect the sales
revenue; and (iii) the increase of labour costs in the Mainland
and the appreciation of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars
which has resulted in an increase in the Group’s operation
costs in the Mainland.

In view of the decline, the Company’s management will
adopt stringent cost control measure, continues to closely
monitor the product development schedule and explore new
customers.

The Group's two main lines of businesses are the original
design manufacturing products (“ODM") business and the
electronic handheld products business. In this financial
year, the electronic handheld products business contributed
approximately 61% of the Group’s total revenue. As to the
ODM business, the contribution of this business segment in
this financial year was approximately 39% of the Group’s total
revenue. The Group would strive to develop and manufacture
products with reasonable profit margins.
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In analyzing the Group’s revenue by geographical markets,
other Asian markets including Japan are still the largest
source of revenue for the Group. The revenue generated
from the Hong Kong is approximately 14.5%. In view of the
overall market condition, the Group will develop towards two
directions. On one hand, the Group will focus on developing
Asian markets. More resources will be spent on developing
the continuous growing China markets. On the other hand,
the Group will strive to develop high value-added electronic
devices for industrial application. It is believed that these
products would bring more stable orders to the Group and
there is more room for long-term expansion.

Despite that the coming years will still be difficult, and that
the business environment will be full of challenges. The Group
will adopt a prudent strategy, minimizing the risk exposure
and conserve as much strength as possible. The Group will
continue to forge strong and tight partnership with our parts
suppliers and customers, so that we could overcome the
difficulties and explore new business opportunities in the near
future.
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Analysis of Revenue by Geographical Market
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Final Dividend

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend any
payment of final dividend (2008: Nil) to the shareholders for
the year ended 31st March 2009.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our shareholders,
customers, suppliers and bankers for their continual support.
I would also like to extend my appreciation to all the staff for
their dedicated work and their contribution throughout the
year.

By order of the Board
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson s»
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9th July, 2009
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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Financial Review

Revenue of the financial year is approximately HK$746
million, which is approximately 21% lower than approximately
HK$941 million of the previous year. During the year under
review, electronic handheld products business and original
design manufacturing business recorded revenues of
approximately HK$453 million and approximately HK$293
million respectively.

Operating loss for the year is approximately HK$62 million
(2008: approximately HK$14 million). After charging finance
costs of approximately HK$0.1 million and other expense
of approximately HK$2 million in total (2008: finance
costs of approximately HK$0.1 million and other expenses
of approximately HK$3 million in total), loss before tax is
approximately HK$64 million (2008: approximately HK$17
million). After taking into account the tax, loss for the year
is approximately HK$65 million (2008: approximately HK$15
million).

On the balance sheet side, inventories have decreased by
approximately HK$19 million to approximately HK$97 million
and trade receivables decreased by approximately HK$30
million to approximately HK$115 million.

Cash and cash equivalents at the balance sheet date amounted
to approximately HK$227 million which was approximately
10% lower than approximately HK$252 million of the previous
year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

On 31st March, 2009, the cash and cash equivalents
were approximately HK$227 million in total, which was
approximately HK$25 million or approximately 10% lower
than those of twelve months ago. Bank borrowing of the same
period was approximately HK$15 million (2008: approximately
HK$3 million). The bank borrowing was denominated in
Japanese Yen with fixed interest rate and short term in nature.

As at 31st March, 2009, the gearing ratio, defined as total
bank borrowings divided by shareholders’ equities was
approximately 3%. The interest expenses have been kept as
below HK$0.1 million during the period.
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Management Discussion & Analysis (Cont’d)
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st March, 2009, the contingent liabilities of the Group
were approximately HK$5 million (2008: approximately HK$9
million).

Foreign Currencies and Treasury Policy

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Japanese
Yen, United States dollars or Renminbi. The usual treasury
policy of the Group is to manage significant currency exposure
and minimize currency risk whenever it may have material
impact to the Group. During the twelve months period, the
Group manages its foreign exchange exposure caused by the
appreciation of Renminbi by entering into hedging forward
contracts. The Group does not engage in any interest rate or
currencies speculations.

Electronic Dictionary
Business Review

The SBU (strategic business unit) has experienced a decline
in sales turnover and gross profit in the financial year of
2008-2009 as compared with the last financial year.

Due to the continual downturn of global economy, the
overall consumer electronic market has significantly slowed
down. Most customers have adopted drastic measures to
minimize the exposure of business loss, either by applying
very conservative sales strategies in promoting our products,
or sharply lowering the safety inventory level in both sales
channels and their warehouses. The depreciation of most Asian
currencies, especially the Korean WON, also discouraged our
Asian customers from importing our products. As a result, the
SBU’s overall business has been inevitably affected.

Furthermore, there has been continual upward pressure on the
materials and labor costs. As a result, the gross profit of the
SBU inevitably dropped.
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Management Discussion & Analysis (Cont’d)
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Electronic Dictionary (Continued)
Business Review (Continued)

The business growth in Vietnam in the financial year of
2008-2009 has slightly slowed down but the SBU still could
record a positive growth in spite of worldwide market
downturn. However, the continuous depreciation of Vietnam
Dong to American Dollar will be a threat to the upward pace
of business growth.

Outlook

Difficult situation will continue in the first half of the financial
year of 2009-2010. It is expected that the situation will be
improved slightly in the second half of the financial year of
2009-2010.

To minimize the adverse effect on gross profit, the SBU will
strive to maintain a reasonable gross profit through enhancing
ceaselessly its operating efficiency, containing the product
development and materials costs.

In view of many uncertainties and the unstable economic
environments, the SBU will continue to monitor the markets
closely and adopt appropriate product and market strategies.
The SBU will allocate more resources on developing low to
medium end products that are demanded by most customers
during the weak economical seasons.

At the same time, the SBU will work hard in expanding its
customer base in different markets. The SBU will continue the
development of innovative products that are equipped with
unique features and carry higher gross profit margins.

The SBU will explore more business opportunities by increasing
a new product line in the financial year 2009-2010. It is
expected that the new product line will start bringing sales
revenues and contributing profit to the SBU in the beginning
of the next financial year.
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Original Design Manufacturing
Business Review

The SBU continued experiencing a decline in sales revenue,
and sustained a loss in the financial year 2008-2009.

The order for the new products that were launched in the
first half of the financial year 2008-2009 deviated from the
original business plan. In the second half of the financial year,
the business strategy of the SBU was adjusted to suit the
ongoing worldwide economic turmoil and recession. Due to
the concern of uncertainty of the consumer market, the SBU
has adopted prudent approach in developing new products.
On the other hand, focus was given to the existing product
categories and customers, as well as exploring new original
design manufacturing (ODM) business opportunities.

In the second half of the financial year 2008-2009, in addition
to the successful launch of the wireless TTO (tabletop ordering)
device with touch panel that are introduced to the chain
restaurants in Japan, another new product, namely “electronic
memo” has made a good success. “Electronic memo” is a
simple typing device with a high-resolution 4 inch display,
a full size keyboard with a unique foldable mechanism,
developed for one of the well known stationery suppliers in
Japan. This product was widely accepted in Japanese consumer
market, and contributed to the sales of the SBU in the second
half of the financial year.

Nevertheless, these thriving results have not been enough
to offset the decrease in sales revenue of the conventional
electronic dictionaries in Japan. The continual downturn of
global economy led to the delay in obtaining repeated order
of the wireless ePOP (electronic point-of-purchase) display
device and in the launching of other new consumer products
launched in Japan during the year.
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Original Design Manufacturing (Continued)
Outlook

The SBU believes that, with the continuous advertising and
promotion effort of customers, repeat orders of the existing
products may exceed the original plan. The new ODM
projects from Japanese customers that were confirmed and
commenced in the last quarter of the financial year 2008-2009
would also contribute considerable revenue in the coming two
years. The business of the SBU would start to be improved
from the financial year 2009-2010. By working together
with customers to develop unique product with leading-edge
technology, these new ODM products are expected to create
new market opportunities in Japan as well as other countries.

In addition, due to the continual marketing and product
development efforts in the past two years, it is expected
that new categories of eBook reader will bring new business
opportunity to the SBU. In various market survey reports,
eBook reader markets were projected to have substantial
growth in the coming few years. While our existing business
partners in the People’s Republic of China and United States
of America continue to enhance their market development,
the SBU is under discussion with several new customers
who are setting up their contents business of which they are
considering to use our eBook reader products to carry their
contents.

S (FFR) R 2 8 Group Sense (International) Limited - 2009 B4 %% Annual Report



BEE W& D (&)

Management Discussion & Analysis (Cont’d)

BABEEm
KO

EBE—F KERERSBREBERLTLE
HOBE - MEEBEIRAX - BAR_FTN/
TETNFUBFEASBUE BEBHR—RHEE
mBRITREMARERODMET - BRXRHE
B MODME FHAEMERNBERNAR
EE SBYERT) S EEAFRRFE
MERE - THFURFEDDHERNFAED =
PR FRIA I8 - ZEEBLL FHFHMRFERE L
F o

ARSBUE-ZZEN,/ —ZETNFHHEEEPE
[RODMER - BIZREY L& RENEFENH
B—LBERBTENER  FEERKRELT A
ANSBURS SRAZE U » ARSBUFEANBA B4F [ L3
FEOMTAREEBEENERME  BHERDFIC
EARMBEESE =FREMNFHBMNE -

POS PDARXBME-ZZT N\ ZZZNFWRF
ER—EEHER - TEMRAZCEATBFE
FEFRA BERERMNBEROA SN - 8
WEBEMHREGNERENE - SHES W IUERR
TRNITENTE - PRALEEEES - F— &
FHIPOS PDARE A BFEE =FTHK -
WERAR KR EFEENFRMIANE

Personal Communication Products
Business Review

During the past one year, the economic recession led to
the reduction of unnecessary consumption and corporate
expenditure. The SBU has reshuffled its business line from
developing ordinary consumer products to products for
vertical markets and ODM business during the financial year
2008-2009. However, corporations and ODM customers have
adopted conservative approach in purchasing new equipments
and developing new products respectively. These affect the
SBU’s results in the financial year 2008-2009. The SBU has
completed the product development and shipment of certain
new products in the second half of the financial year. The sales
revenue of the SBU is slightly increased as compared with the
first half of the financial year.

In view of establishing long-term clientele and developing
products with stable orders for bringing stable sales revenue
to the SBU, the SBU focused to develop ODM business in
the financial year 2008-2009. The SBU has commenced the
product development of certain projects in the first half of
the financial year and some of those have been shipped to
the customers in the third and fourth quarters of this financial
year.

POS PDA business is one of the major focuses in the financial
year 2008-2009. New product development has been
commenced in the first half of this financial year. Emphasis is
put in increasing the products reliability, software stability and
products extendability. New products could be applicable in
various industries, like retail, logistics, warehouse management,
etc. New series of POS PDA product development has been
completed in the third quarter of this financial year and POS
PDA products have been shipped in the fourth quarter of this
financial year.
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Personal Communication Products (Continued)
Outlook

The SBU will focus in developing POS PDA business in the
coming year. The SBU will strive to increase the product
competitiveness by continuing its efforts to enhance the
product quality and features as well as containing the materials
and production costs in product development. Besides,
the SBU will provide supporting services to customers, for
example, providing tailor-made product and software design,
technical support and after-sales services. On the other hand,
in the financial year 2009-2010, the SBU is targeted to search
for different collaborative partners of different markets and
provide related services to customers of different industries
and different countries. It is hoped that the establishment of
a better distribution network will assist the promotion and
marketing of the products.

Expansion of ODM business is another focus of the SBU in the
financial year 2009-2010. The SBU has commenced few ODM
projects in the financial year 2008-2009. Some products have
been shipped to customers in the second half of the financial
year 2008-2009 and some products will be shipped in the first
half of the financial year 2009-2010. The SBU will continue its
efforts to improve the product quality and service quality and
maintain competitive price. In turn, there will be an increase in
customer orders and product development projects. The SBU
will also strive to search for new customers so as to expand
the ODM business.

The SBU believes that development of POS PDA business and
stable ODM business is the long-term development strategy.
However, the economic environment is still uncertain. The
SBU will adopt conservative approach. It is hoped that by
stringently containing the expenses and leveraging on the
existing clientele and product bases, the SBU could achieve
better results in economic turnround times.
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Employees Relations

As at 31st March, 2009, the Group has on its payroll 262
(2008: 269) employees in Hong Kong, 2,437 (2008: 2,573)
employees in the Mainland China and 11 (2008: 9) employees
in Japan, representing a decrease of about 3%, a decrease of
about 5% and an increase of 22% respectively as compared
with prior year. In addition to salary remuneration and usual
fringe benefits such as annual leave, medical insurance and
provident fund, the Group also provides Share Incentive Plans
for executive directors and senior staff.

At the beginning and in the interim of every financial year,
the Group’s management holds Business Planning Meetings
with its senior staff to review together the Group’s past
performance, as well as to discuss with them the Group’s
future strategic plans, policies and developments. After
publication of the Group’s results announcement, staff
communication sessions are held to keep employees abreast
of the Group’s developments and also to facilitate two-way
dialogue between the management and all level of employees.
The management actively communicates with employees by
means of “GSL SMS” through intranet, staff newsletters and
emails to ensure free flow of information across different
staff levels and to promote information and experience
sharing. All staff are encouraged to express their views and
feelings and to propose suggestions on different aspects.
Employee satisfaction surveys are conducted regularly to help
the senior management gauge various concerns of the staff
and formulate appropriate solutions accordingly. A good
promotion system is in place to identify the potential staff and
help employees prepare for their career prospects.

The Group has appointed a number of professional training
consultants to run workshops for improving mid-level
management executives’ problem solving skills, communication
skills and team spirit building technique. Other in-house
training programmes have also been organized to continuously
develop the capabilities of all levels of the staff. Moreover,
employees are encouraged to take outside programmes to
acquire additional knowledge and upgrade their skills. Staff
may be nominated for attending selected training schemes
with full sponsorship. Employees who are interested in other
unselected courses may still apply for the full or partial
subsidies through the Group’s Education Subsidizing Scheme.

The Group promotes new corporate culture. A total of 31
workshops were organized to ensure that all employees
understand the new culture and to encourage them to apply
in their daily work and life.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group’s concern for the environment begins with its
own operations. The Group’s headquarter in Hong Kong
participated the centralized automatic refuse collection system
and lighting control system. The Group encourages the
adoption of recycled or environmentally responsible materials
as well as paper and toner cartridges recycling. Besides, the
Group requests any relevant parts or materials delivered,
provided and/or supplied by the suppliers shall comply with
and observe Directive of the European Parliament and of the
Council on the restriction of the use of certain hazardous
substances in electrical and electronic equipment (RoHS),
Directive of the European Parliament and of the Council on
waste electrical and electronic equipment (WEEE), Directive of
the European Parliament and of the Council on registration,
evaluation, authorisation and restriction of chemicals (REACH)
and other standards.

In order to enhance the administrative efficiency, the 1ISO9001
Quality Management System and ISO14001 Environmental
Management System have been combined since 2000.
On-site surveillance assessment is conducted regularly by
independent assessors to ensure compliance and continual
improvement. Internal audit teams have been organised to
perform compliance audit on an on-going basis. The Group
has upgraded the environmental management system to attain
the new 1SO14001: 2004 standard.

As to care for the Community, the Group continues to
encourage and sponsor its employees to participate in
Standard Chartered Marathon.
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The Company is committed to achieving a high standard of
corporate governance practices with a view to protecting the
interests of all of its shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) throughout the financial
year ended 31st March, 2009 as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) which
came into effect on 1st January, 2005.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code"”) as its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all directors, all directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
financial year ended 31st March, 2009. In compliance with the
recent amendments to the requirements of the Model Code,
the Company has amended its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the directors accordingly.

THE BOARD

Currently, the Board of the Company comprises eleven
directors, including seven executive directors, namely Dr.
Tam Wai Ho, Samson s (Chairman), Mr. Tam Wai Tong,
Thomas (Managing Director), Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian,
Mr. Kazuhiro Otani, Mr. Lee Koon Hung, Dr. Fok Ting Yeung,
James and Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith; one non-executive
director namely Mr. Lo Chi Chung, William; and three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing
Ki, Samuel wmu, » , Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong
Kon Man, Jason. During the financial year ended 31st March,
2009, there has been no change as to the composition of the
Board.

S (HF) BR2 3 Group Sense (International) Limited - 2009 4 %% Annual Report



EEERRE (&)

Corporate Governance Report (Cont'd)

Exe(#)

EEeEHRETEH  BFRLAANRER
AROBF—R AREFSTHERRSHNEG
FNELTORBELTHAEES  UEMBES
BEREBEZ=LE - @ZNFRRERXHEIE
CRAM=RARLUBRAEESTERERTW
FEMAEFTECHERAE EFTTECHE
ZOREREEAMCAERBRARX2BES
HEEREER -FHRLEEMEEERLER
HYRTE 2 R AR A e SN @ SR A

THE BOARD (Continued)

The Board meets regularly and board meetings are held at
least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
Notices of regular board meetings are served to all directors
at least fourteen days before the meetings to ensure that all
directors are given the opportunity to attend. Agenda and
accompanying board papers are sent out to all directors at
least three days in advance to ensure that all directors are
given the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
regular board meetings. Draft minutes of board meetings are
circulated to all directors for comment within a reasonable
time prior to confirmation. Minutes are recorded in sufficient
detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions
reached.

REBE_ZTNEF=A=T—"HULEUHBFERN During the financial year ended 31st March, 2009, four board
EEQCETUARGHE  SEEERZHFE RN meetings were held and the individual attendance of each
T director is set out below:
HESBRE
Number of
meetings attended
BITES Executive Directors
BER et (EE) Tam Wai Ho, Samson j (Chairman) 4/4
BER(EFHLIE) Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director) 4/4
EieRE Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian 4/4
RNAFE Kazuhiro Otani 4/4
2 Lee Koon Hung 3/4
EEF Fok Ting Yeung, James 4/4
PERA Luk Chui Yung, Judith 4/4
FHITES Non-executive Director
wER Lo Chi Chung, William 3/4
BIYFHTES Independent non-executive Directors
Rk sems . cvet Yung Wing Ki, Samuel w, 2/4
AT B K, Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 3/4
EFHX Wong Kon Man, Jason 4/4

EERRARTEANEE 2 BERAENEE - B
REEAKEZWBERE  BREGERNIENT
BEAMEEREEBCARLETLH EEEER
RAREAEEBERERITHRESR -

The Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategies
and policies of the Group, reviewing and monitoring its
financial performance, including preparing and approving
financial statements and overseeing operational matters of the
management. Daily business operations and administration
functions are delegated to the management.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules, sufficient
number of independent non-executive directors have been
appointed with one of them has appropriate accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Board has
received annual confirmation of independence from the
independent non-executive directors as required under Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The relationship between Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson 5 and
Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas is brothers. Mrs. Tam Mui Ka
Wai, Vivian is the wife of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson 5. The
relationship between Mr. Lee Koon Hung and Ms. Luk Chui
Yung, Judith is husband and wife. Save for these relationships,
there are no other financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships among members of the Board.

Currently, the Company has set up five committees
including Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee, Risk
Management Committee, Executive Management Committee
and Share Option Committee. Each committee is delegated
with various responsibilities by the Board in assisting the Board
in the discharge of its duties and to administer particular
aspects of the Group’s activities. Details of the role and
function of each committee are summarized below.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and the Managing Director are Dr. Tam Wai Ho,
Samson » and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas respectively. The
roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director are clearly
segregated and are not exercised by the same individual. The
Chairman’s principal responsibility is to manage the Board
and the Managing Director’s principal responsibility is to
manage the Company’s business. In particular, the Chairman
is responsible for the Group’s corporate planning and financial
management whereas the Managing Director is responsible
for the overall marketing and sales strategies of the Group’s
products.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The term of appointment of each of the non-executive
directors are fixed for a specific term, and shall be subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in 1996. The
Company has adopted terms of reference in compliance
with code provision B.1.3 of the Code. The Remuneration
Committee comprises an executive Director, namely Dr. Tam
Wai Ho, Samson j» (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ho
Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure in relation to remuneration of directors and senior
management of the Company. It schedules to meet at least
once a year for reviewing the remuneration of the executive
directors and senior management of the Company and
assessing performance of executive directors. In determining
and approving the remuneration of directors and senior
management of the Company, the Remuneration Committee
shall consider factors such as market competitiveness,
individual performance and achievement and company and
divisional profitability.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee has held two meetings during
the financial year ended 31st March, 2009 for approving
the salary adjustment for executive directors and senior
management of the Company, and approving the payment of
result bonus for executive directors and senior management
of the Company. The attendance of each member is set out
below:

HEEERRE
Number of
meetings attended

BER svar Tam Wai Ho, Samson 2/2
AT B X, Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 272
T®HX Wong Kon Man, Jason 2/2
EREEE AUDIT COMMITTEE

BEREZEGR—NANERIY - KARIBIREST
B2 PRGN C 33 MMBZEE SRS E -
ARNBIEABZZESNBIESHEIRIZEFR 2T
BMESCC.33FAIERT 2 RAMELERT - B ZE
BEeNERE-EBIUIFENTES A KELAE
wens var (BREBEEF)  MBIKLERT
BNEERIFPITESRERESE -

ERZEEZIEREBBRMBIMEXMNY
BERE W HE BRI 2 B AIE KON EFER R
HREZ RE

The Audit Committee was established in 1999. The Company
has adopted terms of reference in compliance with code
provision C.3.3 of the Code. In compliance with the recent
amendments to the Code Provisions C.3.3 of the Code, the
Company has amended the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee accordingly. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing
Ki, Samuel mu, ;» (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Ho
Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason and a non-
executive director, Mr. Lo Chi Chung, William.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include
providing an independent and professional advice on financial
reporting, and evaluating the effectiveness of internal control
and the sufficiency of external and internal audits.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2009, the Audit
Committee has held four meetings to review the accounting
principles and practices adopted, discuss and evaluate internal
control procedures, risk management and financial reporting
matters. It also ensures that the Group complies with all
applicable laws and regulations. The attendance of each
member is as follows:

HEEERRE
Number of
meetings attended

BKE smms . cves Yung Wing Ki, Samuel wx, i» 4/4
AT B K, Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 4/4
F#x Wong Kon Man, Jason 4/4
FEEIE Lo Chi Chung, William 4/4
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After each Audit Committee meeting, the Chairman of the
Audit Committee will present a report to the Board which
highlights any significant issues discussed in the meeting for
the Board’s information and consideration. To assist the Audit
Committee to carry out its duties, the Process Improvement
and Internal Audit Sub-committee was formed in 2002 to
provide support to frontline functions in improving business
operations and performing internal audit. Internal audit reports
will be directly sent to the Audit Committee periodically.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established in 2001 to
help directors identify and assess business risks. Corresponding
strategies are formulated and risk management system is
implemented to prevent and manage market and operational
risks.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Executive Management Committee was established in
2005 with written terms of reference to operate as a general
management committee under the authority of the Board.
Currently, the Executive Management Committee comprises
seven executive directors, namely Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson s
(Chairman of the Executive Management Committee), Mr.
Tam Wai Tong, Thomas, Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, Mr.
Kazuhiro Otani, Mr. Lee Koon Hung, Dr. Fok Ting Yeung,
James and Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith.

SHARE OPTION COMMITTEE

The Share Option Committee was established in 1996 with
written terms of reference to deal with issues regarding any
grant of share options under the Company’s share option
scheme. In any case, the grant of the Company’s share
options to any director or his associates requires the approval
of the Company’s independent non-executive directors. The
Share Option Committee comprises two executive directors,
Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian (Chairman of the Share Option
Committee) and Mr. Lee Koon Hung.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year under review, the total remuneration in respect
of audit services and non-audit services provided by the
Company’s auditors are HK$1,500,000 and HK$170,000
respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the Company's financial statements which give a true and fair
view. The statement of the auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out in “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 36 to 37
of the annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibilities for internal control of the
Group. The system of internal control is designed to manage
and eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Process Improvement and Internal Audit Sub-committee
was formed in 2002 to provide support to frontline functions
in improving business operations and performing internal
audit. A comprehensive policy and standard governing the
process improvement and internal audit scope and workflow,
authority and integrity of the audit staff, was promulgated in
September 2006. Internal audit reports will be directly sent to
the Audit Committee periodically. After each Audit Committee
meeting, the Chairman of the Audit Committee will address
the significant internal audit findings for the Board's
information and consideration.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries
which cover the review of risk management functions, the
Company’s material controls including financial, operational
and compliance controls. The Board considered the internal
control system effective and adequate.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to enhancing investor relationship
by increasing its transparency to the investor community.
Measures to keep investors informed of the Group’s latest
developments comprehensively and timely include posting of
press release and announcements on the Group’s website and
e-mail news updates.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson ,, aged 45, is the Chairman
of the Company and one of the founders of the Group.
He is responsible for the Group’s corporate planning and
financial management. He has been one of the members
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company since
November 1996. He graduated from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in Science and later
was awarded the degree of Doctor of Philosophy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He received “The Young
Industrialist Award of Hong Kong” awarded by the Federation
of Hong Kong Industries in September 1992 and was awarded
as one of the “Ten Outstanding Young Persons” in November
1997. He is a member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong
(Information Technology Functional Constituency), the Deputy
Chairman of the Hong Kong Productivity Council, the Vice
Chairman of PRD Council of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries and a member of The Hong Kong — European Union
Business Co-operation Committee. He is the younger brother
of Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas, the Managing Director of the
Company and the husband of Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian,
an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. TAM Wai Tong, Thomas, aged 47, is the Managing
Director of the Company and one of the founders of the
Group. He is responsible for the overall marketing and
sales strategies of the Group’s products. He has a Diploma
in Electronic Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He has over twenty-four years of experience in
marketing electronic components and consumer electronic
products. He received “Advanced Technology Development
Award” of “Capital Magazine's Outstanding Information
Technology and Financial Enterprise Awards” in August 2001.
He is the elder brother of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson 5, the
Chairman of the Company and the brother-in-law of Mrs. Tam
Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, an Executive Director of the Company.

Mrs. TAM Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, aged 41, is an Executive
Director of the Company. She joined the Group in February
1992 and is responsible for human resources management,
administrative matters and electronic publishing of the Group.
She has been one of the members of the Share Option
Committee of the Company since November 1996. She has
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Arts from the University of
Hong Kong and a Master’s degree in Training and Human
Resource Management from the University of Leicester,
United Kingdom, and has over nineteen years of experience in
management and administration. Mrs. Tam is the wife of Dr.
Tam Wai Ho, Samson s, the Chairman of the Company and
the sister-in-law of Mr. Tam Wai Tong, the Managing Director
of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Kazuhiro OTANI, aged 48, joined the Company as
Executive Director in April 1997. He is responsible for OEM/
ODM business in the Strategic Product Division, corporate
business planning and corporate sourcing strategy of the
Group. He graduated from the Kansai University of Foreign
Studies in Osaka, Japan with a Bachelor of Arts in Foreign
Languages, and has been working for a Japanese electronics
company for fourteen years before he joined the Group. He
has spent the latter ten years in the Hong Kong office of this
Japanese company since 1987, being responsible for sales and
marketing of electronic components such as IC, LCD, etc.

Mr. LEE Koon Hung, aged 46, joined the Group in 1988
and was appointed as Executive Director of the Company in
April 1998. He is responsible for the personal communication
products business of the Group. He has been one of the
members of the Share Option Committee of the Company
since April 2003. He graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with Higher Certificate in Electronic
Engineering and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Computer
Science from Asia International Open University and a Master
of Science’s degree in Engineering Business Management from
the University of Warwick, United Kingdom. He has twenty-
five years of experience in product development. He is the
husband of Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith, an Executive Director
of the Company.

Dr. FOK Ting Yeung, James, aged 60, joined the Company
as Executive Director in April 1999. He is responsible for the
Group's strategic operations. He holds a Bachelor of Science
in Engineering and a Master of Philosophy from the University
of Hong Kong, and a Doctor of Philosophy Degree from the
University of London. He has thirty-nine years of experience
in many areas, including academic research, industrial
research, production management, product development,
consulting and strategic business development. Before joining
the Group, he served Hong Kong Productivity Council for
thirteen years as Divisional Manager of Electronics Services
Division, Branch Director of Design and Automation Branch
and finally as Deputy Executive Director. He is a member of
the Advisory Committee on Electronic Engineering of the
Chinese University of Hong Kong, the Advisory Committee for
the Knowledge Management Research Centre of Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, Senior Vice President of the Council of
the Hong Kong Association for the Advancement of Science
and Technology and the Vice Chairman of the Manufacturing
Enterprise Integration and Innovation Association.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Ms. LUK Chui Yung, Judith, aged 42, joined the Group
in 1989 and was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company in June 2007. She is responsible for the electronic
dictionary business in the Electronic Dictionary Division of the
Group. She graduated from the City University of Hong Kong
with a Higher Diploma in Business Management. She has
twenty years of experience in marketing & sales of consumer
electronic products. She is the wife of Mr. Lee Koon Hung, an
Executive Director of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LO Chi Chung, William, aged 49, is a Non-executive
Director of the Company. He has been one of the members
of the Audit Committee of the Company since April 2003.
He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and is a fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He also holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of Warwick, United
Kingdom. Prior to joining the Group in July 1993, Mr. Lo has
worked for several major international corporations including
IBM and Siemens. He was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in November 1996 and resigned with effect
from April 2003 but remains as a Non-executive Director of
the Company. He is currently Group Senior Director — Finance
and Administration of Vitasoy International Holdings Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YUNG Wing Ki, Samuel v, », aged 51, Certified
Financial PlannerCM, Registered Financial Consultant,
Chartered Financial Practitioner, is a Senior District Director
of American International Assurance Company (Bermuda)
Limited. He is also the Hong Kong and Macau Chair of
International Association of Registered Financial Consultants.
He was awarded the International EMBA from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. He joined the Company
as Independent Non-executive Director in January 1995 and
has been one of the members of the Audit Committee since
March 1999. He has over twenty-seven years of experience in
insurance and received “The Ten Outstanding Young Persons
Award” in November 1994. He was the Chairman of The
Outstanding Young Persons’ Association (2000-2002), the
President of The Life Underwriter Association Hong Kong
(1991), the President of the General Agents and Managers
Association of Hong Kong (1995-1996), the Co-Chairman of
the Asia Pacific Life Insurance Council (1996-1997) and the
International Committee Chairman of GAMA International
(1997-1999). He is a Council Member of Kwai Tsing District
Council. He is a Council Member and a Co-Convenor of
Independent Non-executive Directors Committee of The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and the Founding President of
Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association.
He also sits in a number of non-governmental organizations
and Government committees as either chairman or committee
member.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. HO Kwok Shing, Harris, aged 49, is the director of G2B
Company Limited. He joined the Company as an Independent
Non-executive Director in January 1995. He has been the
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee of the Company since November 1996 and March
1999 respectively. He has obtained a Diploma in Journalism
from the Shue Yan University and a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He has over twenty-six years of experience in
marketing consumer electronic products.

Mr. WONG Kon Man, Jason, aged 45, joined the Company as
an Independent Non-executive Director and a member of the
Audit Committee in September 2004. He has been a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company since
January 2005. He graduated from The University of Hawaii
with a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration majoring
in Accounting. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has over fourteen years of
experience in accounting and auditing. At present, Mr. Wong is
the Managing Director of Fortune Capital Group Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Masakatsu TSUJI, aged 71, is the Deputy Managing
Director — Manufacturing of the Group. He has extensive
experience in manufacturing of electronic products such
as personal computers and personal digital assistants. Prior
to joining the Group in July 1999, he worked for a famous
Japanese electronics company as a senior management staff
for thirty-eight years and has considerable overseas working
experience in United States, Korea and other Southeast Asian
countries.

Mr. LI Chi Hung, Francis, aged 51, is the Executive Director,
Marketing and Business Development of Group Sense PDA
Limited and Group Sense Mobile-Tech Limited, subsidiaries
of the Group. He holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from University of East Asia. Prior to joining
the Group in December 2003, he has more than twenty years
of experience in marketing and manufacturing of consumer
electronic products.

Mr. CHAN Ho Bun, Steve, aged 48, is the General Manager
of the Group's Strategic Product Division. He graduated from
University of Birmingham, United Kingdom with a Bachelor
of Science in Computer Science. He has over twenty-three
years of experience in the field of electronics and computer
products. He joined the Group in 1993.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities
and associates are set out in notes 17, 18 and 19 respectively
to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2009
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 38.

No interim dividend was paid during the year and the
Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend
to shareholders for the year ended 31st March, 2009. The
retention of the profit of the Group as at 31st March, 2009
was approximately HK$15,118,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31st March, 2009:

(i) The Group's largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for approximately 18% and 57%
respectively of the Group's total revenue.

(i) The Group's largest supplier and five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 12% and 41% respectively
of the Group’s total purchases (not including purchases
of items which are of capital nature).

According to the understanding of the directors, none of the
directors, their associates or any shareholders who owned
more than 5% of the Company's share capital had any interest
in the five largest customers nor the five largest suppliers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired leasehold improvement of
approximately HK$1 million, furniture, fixtures and equipment
of approximately HK$2 million, plant and machinery
of approximately HK$5 million, toolings and moulds of
approximately HK$9 million and construction in progress of
approximately HK$1 million.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 35 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2009, the Company did not have any reserves
available for distribution, calculated in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended). In addition, the Company’s share premium account,
in the amount of approximately HK$409,710,000, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Tam Wai Ho, Samson s (Chairman)

Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director)
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian

Kazuhiro Otani

Lee Koon Hung

Fok Ting Yeung, James

Luk Chui Yung, Judith

Non-executive director:
Lo Chi Chung, William
Independent non-executive directors:

Yung Wing Ki, Samuel wmu, »
Ho Kwok Shing, Harris
Wong Kon Man, Jason

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson », Mr. Lee Koon Hung, Mr. Lo Chi
Chung, William and Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

All non-executive directors have been appointed for a term of
no more than one year.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel wm, w,
Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason, an
annual confirmation of their independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
and considers the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31st March, 2009, the interests of the directors and their
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, were as follows:

FEEERRAEE (F8)
Number of ordinary shares held (long position)
HEBITRA

BEME BAER RikER Hittgs ZEDH
BEENA Nature Personal Family Other #zE % of issued
Name of director of interests interests interests interests Total share capital
BEF A va+ Wt —R= 31,732,000 - 537,877,118 569,609,118 47.56
Tam Wai Ho, Samson Notes 1 & 2
EREX WiF—k= 34,732,000 - 537,877,118 572,609,118 47.81
Tam Wai Tong, Thomas Notes 1 & 2
BiERE Bt — 2,300,000 - 537,877,118 540,177,118 45.10
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian Note 1
RAFE 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.17
Kazuhiro Otani
ESuwi 1,676,000 - - 1,676,000 0.14
Lee Koon Hung
ERA 550,000 - - 550,000 0.05
Luk Chui Yung, Judith
BER 2,900,000 - - 2,900,000 0.24

Lo Chi Chung, William
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(Continued)

Notes:

1. The 537,877,118 shares are registered in the name of Earnmill

Holdings Limited, a company ultimately beneficially owned
by The Samson 1992 Trust and The Thomas 1992 Trust in
equal shares. The Samson 1992 Trust is a discretionary trust,
the discretionary beneficiaries of which include Dr. Tam Wai
Ho, Samson Jp and Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian (spouse of
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp). The Thomas 1992 Trust is a
discretionary trust, the discretionary beneficiaries of which
include Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas and Mrs. Tam Ng Lai
Yuen, Jocelyn (spouse of Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas). Dr. Tam
Wai Ho, Samson Jp, Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian and Mr. Tam
Wai Tong, Thomas, being directors, are directors of Earnmill
Holdings Limited.

2. Included above is the 25,732,000 shares which are jointly
owned by Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp and Mr. Tam Wai Tong,
Thomas.

The interests of the directors and their associates in the share
options granted by the Company are set out in the section
“Share Option” in the Report of Directors.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2009, none of the
directors or their associates had any interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as defined in the SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS

The detailed disclosures relating to the Company’s share
option schemes are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Name of shareholder

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any listed securities of the Company during
the year ended 31st March, 2009.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31st March, 2009, the register of substantial shareholders
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect
of certain directors, the following shareholders had notified
the Company of relevant interests and short positions in the
issued capital of the Company:

FEEBERROE (F8)
Number of

ordinary shares held
(Long Position)

HEBTRAE
ZBEZL

% of issued
share capital

Earnmill Holdings Limited

DJE Investment S.A.

Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG

Dr. Jens Alfred Karl EHRHARDT

537,877,118 44.91
(K7£—) (Note 1)
72,284,000 6.04
(Hzt=) (Note 2)
72,284,000 6.04
(Kt =) (Note 2)
72,284,000 6.04

(Kzt=) (Note 2)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Notes:

1. The shareholding is also included in the “Directors’ Interests in
Securities” disclosed above.

2. DJE Investment S.A. held 72,284,000 shares as an investment
manager. DJE Investment S.A. was 81% controlled by Dr. Jens
Ehrhardt Kapital AG, which was in turn 68.5% controlled by
Dr. Jens Alfred Karl EHRHARDT. Therefore, DJE Investment
S.A., Dr Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG and Dr. Jens Alfred Karl
EHRHARDT were all interested or deemed to be interested in
such shares.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2009, the Company
had not been notified by any persons who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
the existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Company's directors throughout the year ended 31st March,
2009.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors on
terms no less exactly than the required standard set out in the
Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of the directors,
all directors have complied with, the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the financial year ended
31st March, 2009. In compliance with the recent amendments
to the requirements of the Model Code, the Company has
amended its code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the directors accordingly.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises independent non-executive
directors, Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel wx, » (Chairman), Mr. Ho
Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason and a non-
executive director, Mr. Lo Chi Chung, William.

During the year, the Audit Committee held four meetings with
100% attendance to review the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discuss internal control
and financial reporting matters. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31st March,
2009.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson
Chairman

Hong Kong
9th July, 2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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FAEEMERBERRAL

To the shareholders of
Group Sense (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Group Sense
(International) Limited set out on pages 38 to 140, which
comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as
at 31 March 2009, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditors’ Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2009 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong
9 July 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement
BE-STAF=A=tBLEE
For the year ended 31 March 2009

B

Z~

BB —EENE
2009 2008
P =E FHET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
LN REVENUE 5 746,418 940,732
SHE R A Cost of sales (580,993) (763,231)
EA Gross profit 165,425 177,501
E A A R W e Other income and gains 5 19,317 35,913
SHEE T AR AN Selling and distribution costs (59,215) (50,256)
TR Administrative expenses (101,604) (92,504)
o RS Research and development expenses (84,669) (82,624)
Hihx H Other expenses (1,970) (3,109)
A& AR Finance costs 7 (8) (54)
FE(RESE - Share of losses of :
S [ e Jointly-controlled entities (1,744) (1,094)
- WNE] Associates - (352)
FAIEE LOSS BEFORE TAX 6 (64,468) (16,579)
A Tax 10 (279) 1,684
AEEFR LOSS FOR THE YEAR (64,747) (14,895)
FEAGES1E - Attributable to:
RATIREREEA Equity holders of the Company 11 (64,673) (15,250)
DHRRER Minority interests (74) 355
(64,747) (14,895)
RE DIVIDEND 12
B Interim - _
EEAH Proposed final - _
AATEBER LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
RAERE ABNG TO ORDINARY EQUITY
BREER HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13
EARCE) Basic (HK cents) (5.4) (1.3)
s OB) Diluted (HK cents) (5.4) (1.3)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

R=BENF=A=+—H

As at 31 March 2009

—EEAEF —ETNF
2009 2008
P =E FET FHT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
IRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - WENEE Property, plant and equipment 14 89,993 102,799
BN EREE Prepaid lease payments 15 17,596 17,644
IR AE B Bk AN Deferred development costs 16 5,196 5,859
TR TR Interests in jointly-controlled entities 18 9,607 11,001
ﬁfﬁ’& AR Interests in associates 19 -
At ERE Available-for-sale investments 20 26,094 26,094
B — B EBLIRR Amount due from a joint-venture
partner 21 1,680 1,587
RHRS Long term deposits 22 2,108 2,186
R EELTE Total non-current assets 152,274 167,170
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
=7E Inventories 23 96,743 115,833
BUE SR Trade receivables 24 114,523 145,485
FERAIE  HE & Prepayments, deposits and
Hofth FEU AR TR other receivables 25 50,940 44,451
FEUNHit & N R BR TN Amounts due from associates 19 3,738 3,402
BAFERABGZR Investments at fair value through
2B profit or loss 26 40,890 41,532
THEsmI A Derivative financial instruments 27 596 5,717
Be MRS EER Cash and cash equivalents 28 227,296 252,165
MEEELLTE Total current assets 534,726 608,585
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
JENE SR L ERZYE  Trade and bills payables 29 78,256 106,517
HiEMEERLESTEE  Other payables and accruals 30 39,440 52,537
e —HEEHIEEBEZ Amount due to a jointly-controlled
entity 18 96 -
JERTER R Tax payable 24,799 24,859
THEERmTA Derivative financial instruments 27 395 3,775
M EIRITIEE Interest-bearing bank borrowing 31 15,428 2,594
mENBERTE Total current liabilities 158,414 190,282
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 376,312 418,303
BEFE Net assets 528,586 585,473
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Cont’'d)
R-ZEAF=A=+—~

As at 31 March 2009

—ETNEF —EENEF
2009 2008
P=E FET FAET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
R EQUITY
AARREFEA Equity attributable to equity
PE{R R RE holders of the Company
=3 ITAR AR Issued capital 33 119,766 119,766
s Reserves 35(a) 404,692 463,851
524,458 583,617
LR RER Minority interests 4,128 1,856
[i& #e 4a EE Total equity 528,586 585,473
EERE L arss EREREE
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson s, Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
EE B
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_TTNF-A-t+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 March 2009

KORRERE AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
it
2&f Rt BXZAHE E4EE LERE EXED EERE SHRR
Bk ORER it i RRER EfRS i RERRN k& ] BE hREEE
Available-
for-sale
Share  Share  Capital investment  Exchange Proposed
Issued premium  option redemption  Special revaluation fluctuation Retained final Minority Total
capital  account* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve*  profits* dividend Total interests  equity
Wi TEr T TEn  TEr  TEn  TEr TR TEr TEn TEr TEn TEx
Notes HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
(M:33)  (MaE33)  (AWsisd) (F3E35(a))
(note 33)  (note33)  (note 34) (note 35(a))
HZT5LE At 1 April 2007 119,761 409,705 1,800 419 (60819 - 11850 95043 29940 607,699 1471 609,170
mA-H
AEEERE2  Change in fair value of
ATEEE available-for-sale
investments 20 - - - - - M - - - 212 - M
3 &5 Exchange realignment - - - - - - 20439 - - 20439 30 20469
WEEstEE  Total income and expense
ERETR recognised directly in
TR equity - - - - - 22 20439 - - 20,651 30 20,681
TEEER Loss for the year - - - - - - - (15,250 - (15,250) 355 (14,89)
REEWZER  Totalincome and expense
] for the year - - - - - 2220439 (15250) - 5401 385 5,786
REETEEE  Transfer to the income
FEBEAZ  statement on disposal
BH% of available-for-sale
investments 2 - - - - - (212) - - - 212) - 1)
Eikh Issue of shares 3 5 5 - - - - - - - 10 - 10
RES 2 E%  Equity-settled share option
TR arrangements 34 - - 661 - - - - - - 661 - 661
BRZEZ+%E  Final 2007 dividend paid 12 - - - - - - - 2 (2990 (299 - (2990
RERE
RZEENE  At31 March 2008
=h=t+-H 119,766 409,710 2,461 419 (60,819) - 3289 79791 - 583617 185% 585473
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Cont'd)

HE_TThF-A=-t+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 March 2009

ARARBRAAELS
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BEf Rt BEIME  EREE EXRE SURR
B REER fife* R BRER R REER: £ B BEEE
Share Share  Capital Exchange
Issued  premium option redemption  Special fluctuation  Retained Minority Total
capital  account*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  profits* Total interests equity
i3 Fhn Tin Tin Tin Fin Tin Tin Tin Thn Fin
Notes HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
(aE33)  (W33)  (HiEse) (FtzE35(a))
(note33)  (note33)  (note 34) (note 35(a)
RZEENEMA-R  At1April 2008 119,766 409,710 2,461 419 (60,819) 32,289 79791 583,617 1,856 585,473
EXE]| Exchange realignment - - - - - 5,119 - 5119 2 5,139
WERT LS Total income and expense
BREDR recognised directly in
Tign equity - - - - - 5119 - 5,119 2 5,139
TEEEE Loss for the year - - - - - - (64673)  (64,673) (74)  (64,747)
EEWER Total income and expense
bt for the year - - - - - 5119  (64,673)  (59,554) (54)  (59,608)
HELADY Capital contribution from
BRTE aminority shareholder
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - 2,326 2,326
HRES R BE Equity-settled share option
TR arrangements 34 - - 395 - - - - 395 - 395
RZEENE At 31 March 2009
=A=1-H 119,766 409,710 2,856 419 (60,819) 37,408 15118 524458 4128 528,586

* ZERBREERNGAEEABRZGAHRE *
404,692,0007% 7T (ZZFZ )\ F : 463,851,000

BIT)

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$404,692,000 (2008: HK$463,851,000) in the consolidated
balance sheet.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HE-BBNF=A=+—BILEE
For the year ended 31 March 2009

—EENE —ZETNF
2009 2008
B FHERT FHET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REEEIHERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
BiATEE Loss before tax (64,468) (16,579)
R Adjustments for:
BB R A Finance costs 7 8 54
FEME L EIEHIE R Share of losses of jointly-
=] controlled entities 1,744 1,094
RGBS AR EE Share of losses of associates = 352
RITABMA Bank interest income 5 (2,816) (8,157)
BRAFEZABRR Interest income from
ZIRE 2 FBWA investments at fair value
through profit or loss 5 (2,682) (2,689)
AHHERE Y Dividend income from
A BUA available-for-sale
investments 5 (824) (215)
HENE  BER (Gain)/loss on disposal of
Z1EE (RS items of property, plant
WEBRIN) 2 (ES) and equipment (other than
E518 - H%E a leasehold property), net 6 (366) 87
HE—AHHERE Net fair value gain on disposal
A ERE TR of an available-for-sale
investment 5 - (212)
BAFELABER Fair value loss/(gain) on
ZIREZNFE investments at fair value
BB () T8 through profit or loss, net 5 479 (321)
NEEEE () - Fair value losses/(gains), net:
FEE
PESmEE Derivative financial assets 5 (3,974) (6,668)
TELRAE Derivative financial liabilities 5 2,517 3,775
i kNI Gain on dilution of an interest
Z W in an associate 5 - (3,073)
e Depreciation 6 30,107 31,264
AN EREE 2 ER Recognition of prepaid lease
payments 6 454 416
R T A 3 X AN 5 Amortisation of deferred
development costs 6 4,289 5,046
M - WE REE Impairment of items of property,
BERE plant and equipment 6 1,362 -
JE sk & R B AR AR Impairment of amounts due
A from associates 6 1,970 159
JEWNE SERFURE @ JFEB Impairment of trade receivables, net 6 805 4,697
FERBE Provision for inventories 6 8,132 12,050
PARRHE S - 2 B 5 Equity-settled share option expense 6 395 661
RARAES M
(22,868) 21,741
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Cont’d)
NE-TENFZA=+—AILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2009

—EENEF —ZETNF
2009 2008
M EE FERT TET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
JE Ui B 2 B BR 3R Increase in amounts due from

#n associates (5,453) (2,012)
FERD Decrease in inventories 11,109 43,016
FEWE 5 BR FOR Decrease in trade receivables 31,422 13,524
TERFIE - 'E REAM (Increase)/decrease in prepayments,

FEUBR R (3L h0) R deposits and other receivables (6,078) 7,512
JERTE SRR R FE L Decrease in trade and bills payables (28,822) (60,309)
HAb AT ER R FEET Decrease in other payables and

BERD accruals (10,374) (3,805)
JE — KR H F 82 Increase in an amount due to

BRFIE AN a jointly-controlled entity 96 -
MTESMEEZRD Decrease in derivative financial assets 3,329 951
MEER(ER) EL Cash (used in)/generated from

a K operations (27,639) 20,618
BERBEBEFER Hong Kong profits tax paid - (189)
BHEINIIE Overseas taxes paid (42) (281)
REERSBEES(RE)/ Net cash (outflow)/inflow from

RAFEE operating activities (27,681) 20,148
REERZHERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
FEWA Interest received 2,816 8,157
BAFERAER Interest received from investments

ZIE ZHEHA at fair value through profit or loss 2,682 2,689
AEEEREZRE Dividend income from

WA available-for-sale investments 824 215
BAME  BE& Purchases of items of property,

HIESEE plant and equipment 14 (18,241) (23,716)
HEWME  BEMRE Proceeds from disposal of items

=15 H Y PR EIE of property, plant and equipment 1,621 -
BABNHEERE Purchase of prepaid lease payment 15 - (8,344)
& ANIRAE R 2 AR Additions to deferred development

costs 16 (3,626) (4,131)
HEAHEEREZ Proceeds from disposal of

Fr5 508 available-for-sale investments - 327
HE— AT EE Investment in a jointly-controlled entity (350) (350)
B — B EBEER Increase in an amount due from

En a joint-venture partner (93) (1,587)
3 oy e Decrease in long term deposits 78 1,304
REXK2HE Net cash outflow from investing

pifa b= activities (14,289) (25,436)

S (HF) BR2 3 Group Sense (International) Limited - 2009 4 %% Annual Report




MEBRERER(E)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Cont’d)
HE-STNF=A=+—BLFE

For the year ended 31 March 2009

—EENEF —EENEF
2009 2008
ks FHET THET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REEXEZEHERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
BT AR Issue of shares - 10
RhE R AN Finance costs (8) (54)
EIRARE Dividends paid - (29,942)
ERITER New bank loan 15,428 5,384
BRBITER Repayment of bank loan (2,594) (2,790)
—MBRATLERETE Capital injection from a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary 2,326 -
BMEERCHERA Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
(R =5 financing activities 15,152 (27,392)
HePRESEEERZ NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
W FE CASH EQUIVALENTS (26,818) (32,680)
FUzReRRE Cash and cash equivalents
£{EI1EHE at beginning of year 252,165 272,885
HINEES [ S S TR R EE Effect of foreign exchange rate
FEE changes, net 1,949 11,960
FRZRLRAS CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Z@EI1ER AT END OF YEAR 227,296 252,165
BERRSSEER ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
EERDAT AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28
Re RRITEH Cash and bank balances 105,696 66,982
BARELIR=ZEARN Non-pledged time deposits with
BB AT H original maturity of less than
TR three months when acquired 121,600 185,183
227,296 252,165
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Balance Sheet

R-PBAF=A=1+—H
As at 31 March 2009

—EEAEF —ETNF
2009 2008
B 5T FERT FHT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
BB A AliERS Interests in subsidiaries 17 719,246 764,266
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
FEUL BT E N BIBR X Due from subsidiaries 17 3,000 3,000
AR - e KEAM Prepayments, deposits and
FEUBE X other receivables 25 308 292
IR & MIRTTAE R Cash and bank balances 28 188 89
MENEELRTE Total current assets 3,496 3,381
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HibEMEER M ESTEE  Other payables and accruals 30 526 514
FERIBER Tax payable 780 897
mENBEEE Total current liabilities 1,306 1,411
B NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,190 1,970
EELERRBAR TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 721,436 766,236
kRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FERB A RIBRR Due to subsidiaries 17 194,356 193,344
BEFE Net assets 527,080 572,892
e #E EQUITY
BEBITRA Issued capital 33 119,766 119,766
B Reserves 35(b) 407,314 453,126
friesa%a Total equity 527,080 572,892
EERE T ra BERERE
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson » Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
E= =
Director Director
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Notes to Financial Statements
HE-BPAF=A=t—BAILEE
For the year ended 31 March 2009

1.

2.1

RAEH

R (EE)BRAR(ARR DR —ER
BRETMAILZABRAR - ARFRIZE
REXWHURNEEMNALBEENEE
MBRAEARREEESNE

RAFR > AREZEBY R 3&
MHERBELEFEM T2RETH
B EABRER  REERFRTEE

EEdn

MR E%E

HEFBHRDRIBEES DS HEM
ZEBUBHRSEYN (BB BREE
A DR BEEReER([FEER
A R2k) EE ARG RAURES
REMEGI 2 WBEREMBE - A TEA
FECABSRIRERITESRTAN
NFERTEIN - I EM MR TIZE LA
RERE - IWEMBHRRAAETINE

REAEES - FELBEYABESRE
FIT o
RAEE

A B M HERERBBARF REME QR
(BB AEE D RBE_FTTAF=A
=t REFEEZMBEHRER - WBARZ
EEmBERR(AAEEIUSIENE
BEETUGSE MBRESEEEZX
EHERIEZ AHIE - EAATEFAEEZR
ZEFHRREHBERIBAE ZE/—
B NEBAMBRARIBZEAR S MG
BINER A R -

DB RERIEINT RN AR B Z M8
RAZFEREEFEPAEASELE
R A 2 #E e

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Group Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The principal place of business of the Company is
located at 6th Floor, Enterprise Place, No. 5 Science
Park West Avenue, Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the design,
manufacture and sale of a range of electronic handheld
products, primarily electronic dictionaries, personal
communication products, and manufacture of original
design manufacturing (“ODM") products.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for investments at
fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments, which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2009. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being
the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
All significant intercompany transactions and balances
within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and
net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.
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2.2 HEITREBIT2EEHBHRE 2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED

ERlzwE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

REBERARFE 2 2 FEBEE RN The Group has adopted the following new

TEBMBREER 2 FRERIE interpretations and amendments to HKFRSs for the first

time for the current year’s financial statements.

BEEGIERIE3N BALITEAFE395% HKAS 39 and Amendments to HKAS 39
BB BHRE SRTE : BRHE HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:

ERIETFHRERT R HEREENB Amendments Recognition and

WEEBETR Measurement and HKFRS 7
ERIA: Financial Instruments:
BE-EF08 Disclosures — Reclassification of
MBEEE Financial Assets

BB (ERE% BBMERELER HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury
mEREZEY) F2R-EERER Share Transactions
—REBER BRER S

B8 (BRI R EELH HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements
wEREZESE)

—REF125%

B (B % BEGTERFE 195 HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
WERBZES) - REBMNEE Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
—REE145% R REES Requirements and their

RERMEZ Interaction
EEBE

FRNEFRERETHV B REES The adoption of these new interpretations and

R 2 MBBRERARBNGHBRILR amendments has had no significant financial effect

fEHEREE - on these financial statements, there have been no

significant changes to the accounting policies applied in
these financial statements.
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2.3

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 27
Amendments

HKFRS 2
Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 8
HKFRS 7 Amendment

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments

HKAS 39
Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13
HK(IFRIC)-Int 15
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17
HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and
HKAS 39 Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
HKFRSs and HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements - Cost of
an Investment in a Subsidiary,

Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate’

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
- Vesting Conditions and Cancellations’

Business Combinations?
Operating Segments!
Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments!

Presentation of Financial Statements!
Borrowing Costs'

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements - Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising
on Liquidation’

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement - Eligible
Hedged Items?

Customer Loyalty Programmes?

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate!

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation*
Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners?

Transfer of Assets from Customers?

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of
Embedded Derivatives and HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement - Embedded Derivatives®
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2.3

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued
Improvements to HKFRSs* which sets out amendments
to a number of HKFRSs primarily with a view to
removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording.
Except for the amendment to HKFRS 5 which is
effective for annual periods on or after 1 July 2009, the
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2009 although there are separate
transitional provisions for each standard.

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2008

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
October 2008

5 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June
2009

* Improvements to HKFRSs contains amendments to

HKFRS 5, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS 8, HKAS 10, HKAS
16, HKAS 18, HKAS 19, HKAS 20, HKAS 23, HKAS 27,
HKAS 28, HKAS 29, HKAS 31, HKAS 34, HKAS 36,
HKAS 38, HKAS 39, HKAS 40 and HKAS 41.

The Group has not early adopted these new and revised
HKFRSs in the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2009. The Group has already commenced
an assessment of the impact of these new and revised
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have a significant
impact on its results of operations and financial
position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and
the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture entity and
the basis on which the assets are to be realised
upon its dissolution. The profits and losses from the
joint venture’s operations and any distributions of
surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in
proportion to their respective capital contributions,
or in accordance with the terms of the joint venture
agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture; or

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have
unilateral or joint control, but holds, directly
or indirectly, generally not less than 20% of
the joint venture’s registered capital and is in a
position to exercise significant influence over the
joint venture.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Jointly-controlled entities

Jointly-controlled entities are joint ventures that
are subject to joint control, resulting in none of the
participating parties having unilateral control over the
economic activity of the jointly-controlled entities.

The Group's interests in jointly-controlled entities
are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at
the Group's share of net assets under the equity
method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of jointly-controlled entities are included in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves respectively. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of jointly-controlled entity is included as part
of the Group's interests in jointly-controlled entities.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in
which the Group has a long term interest of generally
not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group's share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results and reserves of associates is included
in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves respectively. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interests in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group's interests in
associates.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate and a
jointly-controlled entity represent the excess of the cost
of the business combination over the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable
assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in
the consolidated balance sheet as an asset, initially
measured at cost and subsequently at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. In the case of associate
and jointly-controlled entity, goodwill is included in the
carrying amount thereof, rather than as a separately
identified asset on the consolidated balance sheet.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on
the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, financial assets and goodwill),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as
to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in
the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the Group;
(i) has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has
joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;
(0) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

(9) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group, or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items
of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant
and equipment, and where the cost of the item can be
measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter

of the lease
terms and 2%
Leasehold improvements 25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 25%
Plant and machinery 15% to 25%
Tooling and moulds 50%
Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each balance sheet date.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be
either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each balance sheet date.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on clearly-defined projects to
develop new products is capitalised and deferred
only when the Group can demonstrate the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to
complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how
the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Research and development costs (Continued)

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the estimated commercial lives of the
underlying products of three years, commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial
production.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and buildings elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the leasehold land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets,
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets after initial recognition and, where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the
balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include the financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on investments held for trading are recognised
in the income statement. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the income statement does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the loans
and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as
through the amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity securities
that are designated as available for sale or are not
classified in any of the other two categories. After
initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value, with gains or losses recognised
as a separate component of equity until the investment
is derecognised or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously reported in equity is included in the income
statement. Interest and dividends earned are reported
as interest income and dividend income respectively
and are recognised in the income statement as “Other
income” in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below. Losses arising from the
impairment of such investments are recognised in the
income statement as “Impairment losses on available-
for-sale financial assets” and are transferred from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such securities are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference
to quoted market bid prices at the close of business at
the balance sheet date. For investments where there
is no active market, fair value is determined using
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using
recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to
the current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis;
and other valuation models.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced either directly or through the use of
an allowance account. The amount of the impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised in the income statement, to the extent
that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision
for impairment is made when there is objective
evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or
significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
significant changes in the technological, market
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor) that the Group will not be able to
collect all of the amounts due under the original terms
of an invoice. The carrying amount of the receivables
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Impaired debts are derecognised when they are assessed
as uncollectible.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets
are not reversed.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the income statement, is transferred from equity to the
income statement. A provision for impairment is made
for available-for-sale equity investments when there
has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value below its cost or where other objective evidence
of impairment exists. The determination of what is
“significant” or ""prolonged” requires judgement. In
addition, the Group evaluates other factors, such as
price volatility. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through
the income statement.

Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed
through the income statement, if the increase in fair
value of the instrument can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised where:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired;

o the Group retains the rights to receive cash
flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

S (FFR) R 2 8 Group Sense (International) Limited - 2009 B4 %% Annual Report



g S EL L6 ))
Notes to Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
NE-FTNFZA=+—AILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2009

24

BHRRERMEE (&)

AAEBEERAWRZBEEMSRTR
BN BYEERIREZAEEN
RAHDERNER AW EEEZIAE
BRI - ZREEREAAR - R
RASERABESRZBEE - [HEY
RIEAKRBERCBREEFLZ — AR
& CHEBEAEDNZBEEZRREE
RAEENBEE 2 NEHE LR (AR
BERE)FH -

MEHDHEREENER R, LBEARE
(BRASHFTHRIELGO 2 T
Bk AEEFBESRRENAKE
AEmsCEREESHE  HNBARN
RPEABZEEZEERAHE(RRE
Re @R BRSO BRI - RIARSE
BRESRCREEREEREEATE
EHETEERE 2 REE -

BBERAARZESREE(RER
BRITHER)

CREGERERNESRANENRE
Hth SR R R MT BRI TR E SRR AT
BEREEXSKAINE  BERABERERNE
FEIREHRAGE - MR EY T E
K- BRARASIRR - BREFI SRR
R BB |RHER -

ERRERAEREEEBET Wk
ERENBERER

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a
written and/or purchased option (including a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on the transferred
asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group
may repurchase, except in the case of a written put
option (including a cash-settled option or similar
provision) on an asset measured at fair value, where the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is limited
to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset
and the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
(including interest-bearing bank borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables,
other payables and interest-bearing bank borrowings
are initially stated at fair value less directly attributable
transaction costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. The related interest
expense is recognised within “Finance costs” in the
income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the amortisation process.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the income statement. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the income statement does
not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities
or recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (ii) the liabilities are part of a group of financial
liabilities which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the
financial liability contains an embedded derivative that
would need to be separately recorded.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS
39 are accounted for as financial liabilities. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially at its fair value
less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial guarantee contract,
except when such contract is recognised at fair value
through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at
the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure recognised to settle the present obligation
at the balance sheet date; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18
Revenue.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to
use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
balance sheet date of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in
the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in “Finance costs” in the
income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the income statement, or in equity
if it relates to items that are recognised in the same or
a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from
goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously
unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) income from the sale of goods, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) service fee income, when the services have been
rendered;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 34 to the financial statements. In valuing
equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any
performance conditions, other than conditions linked
to the price of the shares of the Company (“market
conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which
the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (the "vesting date”). The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each
balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting
is conditional upon a market condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance conditions are satisfied.

S (HF) BR2 3 Group Sense (International) Limited - 2009 4 %% Annual Report



PR R AR My ()

Notes to Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

HE—

TTNF=ZA=1T—RHILFE

For the year ended 31 March 2009

24

BEER(H)
KRG RBEREZ RS (&)

1175 1 DA B 2 A 2R D 2 6R K RURESE
T R AR I A PRI RR © LS - WS
IR TS - MAFEBENARD B
EMINLHZ R FEARE  IERER
ZAZFEELEANNERZES - AR
RS

1175 BB B 2 1 22 D 2 163K RIRAN[A]
REUEZ HE BB RIE - WEIR R MR
REEER ML - AT - HERH
BB EUR 2 52 - YRE T 2B
AR Z 2R - RIANE BT — R P aAR &
[REER) 2 B8 - BLEUR 2 SEE) N 3 88
BYETTERTEIE ©

ERTEZRBEZEEZENSRAN
BB ZAEPERRBEINZ B #

AEEDRMEBVBREENE2HRE
BACA R SO BB 2 @R MR BB
MBmERANF2REEAR_FTT_F
T—AERZERHER -_FTRFNOA
— AR R 2 AR ST 5E R - AR =
ETRFOA-BRZEREZ AR
eI K

BIKTEE

AEBRFRGEAEREEEDIRIL—
BERERRZAHERTESRKENEE
(B8] REERERS2HER
HEAtE - HRREEEAHENR -8
DHAEL - WIRERE S & 2 RN E
TXNRERGERME - BRESFEZE
ERREENHEMEEDREE B8
VEBZESRA - £REED B
B ARERIEFEE2BEBENEEMH
5o

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification, which
increases the total fair value of the share-based
payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
or loss per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of
HKFRS 2 in respect of equity-settled awards and has
applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards granted
after 7 November 2002 that had not vested by 1 April
2006 and to those granted on or after 1 April 2006.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Pension schemes (Continued)

The Group also operates a defined contribution staff
retirement scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
for its employees (including certain directors), the assets
of which are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the ORSO Scheme. When an employee leaves the ORSO
Scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Group may be reduced by the relevant
amount of forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute 14% of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to
the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions are initially recorded using
the functional currency rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and one of jointly-controlled entity are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance
sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date, and their income statements are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are included in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred
cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgement, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment property and prepaid
lease payment

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

(a) Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for all non-financial
assets at each reporting date. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested
for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

B2 THREM (&) Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

b)  EERE ()  Impairment of goodwill
rEESGIOBF-RETEERS The Group determines whether goodwill is
HIRRE - AREEESRK 2 impaired at least on an annual basis. This
REELEEN 2FREE  HEHE requires an estimation of the value in use of the
AEEEXKAEEHEESRCE cash generating units to which the goodwill is
B 2 AR &R B EH L allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
B MMRERAEBEZ MR EUGE the Group to make an estimate of the expected
ZERORECHE - A2 future cash flows from the asset or cash-
SIARKRIBEERE R, AR RE generating unit and also to choose a suitable
15 5| BUE DA (R 2 b HRUE RS discount rate in order to calculate the present
HEITHEE - value of those cash flows. A change in the

estimated future cash flows and/or the discount
rate applied will result in an adjustment to the
estimated impairment provision previously made.

(c) AR ER A E A () Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets
REBBETEERRARATHL The Group classifies certain assets as available-
& TARREFERELATEY for-sale and recognises movements of their fair
B o IATERY - BREMEAT values in equity. When the fair value declines,
W2 EE - UEBEEERARER management makes assumptions about the
KANERRE - RZZEZENEFE=H decline in value to determine whether there
=+—H BEdrfEEEER is an impairment that should be recognised in
RAEBE(ZZEZENF - &) - the income statement. At 31 March 2009, no

impairment losses have been recognised for
available-for-sale assets (2008: Nil).

(d)  [ENEZER5E (d)  Impairment of trade receivables

REBLE R P ARBEIELPIARNK
MELZ A BRAREREE - &
S BIRME W E 5 AR R R 2 ARl
BEPEEBEZMARCEIEL G
it MEPZMBHANEE - EH
BERBERBBL RN - AEEF
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The Group maintains an allowance for estimated
loss arising from the inability of its customers to
make the required payments. The Group makes
its estimates based on the ageing of its trade
receivable balances, customers’ creditworthiness,
and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of its customers was to
deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss
might be higher than expected, the Group
would be required to revise the basis of making
the allowance and its future results would be
affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

B2 TREM (&) Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(e)  IREEE (e)  Warranty provision
AEBERE TERRE—ZEMFR The Group gives warranties of one to two
& WHERE R NIREE T UKL years on certain products and undertakes to
kgt BrREFIRTEERE repair or replace items that fail to perform
B o NEEIRE L2418 A AR satisfactorily. Significant judgement is required
HEEMMEE BREERER when determining the warranty expenses. The
BRAGETRERX © WAEEZR Group estimates the warranty expenses based
ERTMERBEEBEIR - Z5EA on the actual repair and item replacement costs
SHELBIMRER M 2 B incurred for the products sold in the last 24
RIEKTE ° months. Where the warranty expenses incurred
are different from the original provision, such
difference would impact the income statement
in the period in which the additional warranty
expenses are incurred.
) FEH (f Income taxes
ERENETMSHEHERERS Significant management judgements on the
TRz BERBREANIELE future tax treatment of certain transactions are
Ky - AREeFETRRZS 2 required in determining income tax provisions.
MG E - I A FE 1 1 B 1A The Group carefully evaluates tax implications
He BERG2RMBRETRETE of transactions and tax provisions are set
S E B AT RATARBIAD 2 up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
2E o transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account all changes in tax legislation.
(g)  BIERXK (g  Development costs

FREBRATDRIE K MwERME2.4
Pt A AR A A 2 8 RTBUR T A
ERNE - BEEMCEBATERE
HEMEECBMARREELE
7 ~ FTER A2 Rh3R R R FE MR E 4 7
mEHELRR -

Development costs are capitalised in accordance
with the accounting policy for research and
development costs in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. Determining the amounts to be
capitalised requires management to make
assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the assets, discount rates to be
applied and the expected period of benefits.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two
segment formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting
basis, by business segment; and (ii) on a secondary
segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide.
Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other business segments. Summary
details of the business segments are as follows:

(a) the electronic handheld products segment
designs, manufactures and sells a range of
electronic handheld products;

(b) the ODM products segment designs,
manufactures and sells ODM products; and

(0) the corporate and others segment comprises
corporate income, expense, asset and liability
items.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to
the segments based on the location of the assets.
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4, SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

TREINAEERBE_ZTNEF
NZZENF=ZA=1+—HBILFE
ZEBDBOWA BT (EE)
RETEE  AERRAXER -

Business segments

The following tables present revenue, profit/
(loss) and certain asset, liability and expenditure
information for the Group’s business segments
for the years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008.

gt Rt

ETER £EER  C¥ERHM RERE

Electronic Corporate

BE-_EENE Year ended handheld ODM and
ZA=t+-BLEE 31 March 2009 products products others Consolidated
TR TET TR TR
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

PERA Segment revenue:

BETFIREP Sales to external customers 453,785 292,633 - 746,418
SEEE Segment results (41,208) (27,838) 4,484 (64,562)
FlEWMARASE Yz Interest income and

unallocated gains 2,816
AOEZH Unallocated expenses (970)
BEMA Finance costs ®)
JEEREEEREEE  Share of losses of jointly-

controlled entities (1,744)
BAIEE Loss before tax (64,468)
W Tax (279)
AEEER Loss for the year (64,747)
LEHER Assets and liabilities
DEEE Segment assets 215,547 159,486 67,580 442,613
HEEHEREER Interests in jointly-

controlled entities 9,607 - - 9,607
AOBEE Unallocated assets 234,780
BEGE Total assets 687,000
HEERE Segment liabilities 78,232 39,034 395 117,661
AOAE Unallocated liabilities 40,753
BaE Total liabilities 158,414
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4, TEER(E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) EBo¥(E) (a) Business segments (Continued)

£t REFRE
BEYER LEER  hERAM RERR

Electronic Corporate

BE-_EZNE Year ended handheld ODM and
ZRA=+-HILEE 31 March 2009 products products others Consolidated
TR TR TER THER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HttnBEH - Other segment information:
& R Depreciation and amortisation 22,562 8,453 = 31,015
APEATE Unallocated depreciation 3,835
34,850
EAAY Capital expenditure 16,547 4,585 - 21,132
APEERRX Unallocated capital expenditure 735
21,867
HENE  BER Gain on disposal of items of
REBE W property, plant and
e equipment, net (203) (163) - (366)
FERE Provision for inventories 6,932 1,200 - 8,132
EmRERE Provision for product warranty 800 - = 800
ERN ST Impairment of items of
HERE property, plant and equipment 1,362 - = 1,362
FEWE 5 IR FORME - Impairment of trade
8 receivables, net 805 - = 805
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4. DEER(E)

(a) HEHIE|(E)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

£r [REERE

ETER KEEm  EREM GakE

Electronic Corporate

BE-_ZTZ)\& Year ended handheld ODM and
ZA=Zt+-HLFE 31 March 2008 products products others  Consolidated
THL FHT THL FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

SEUA - Segment revenue:

HETIHIRES Sales to external customers 601,337 339,395 - 940,732
NEER Segment results (3,982) (25,547) 6,329 (23,200)
MEWARADEYE  Interest income and

unallocated gains 11,230
KAl Unallocated expenses (3,109)
BERA Finance costs (54)
JEMEEFEHIEREEE  Share of losses of jointly-

controlled entities (1,094)
LB & AR BB Share of losses of associates (352)
BiAIEE Loss before tax (16,579)
A Tax 1,684
NEEER Loss for the year (14,895)
BEHAE Assets and liabilities
DEEE Segment assets 281,367 148,324 73,343 503,034

HEZH RS Interests in jointly-

controlled entities 11,001 - - 11,001
RPMEE Unallocated assets 261,720
BEHE Total assets 775,755
PERRE Segment liabilities 106,211 52,329 3,775 162,315
=L Unallocated liabilities 27,967
BeE Total liabilities 190,282
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4, TEER(E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) EBo¥(E) (a) Business segments (Continued)

B RE®
BTER  AEER  MEREM  GAAE

Electronic Corporate

H2-ZT)\F Year ended handheld ODM and
ZA=Zt+-HLFE 31 March 2008 products products others  Consolidated
TER TR THET TER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HitHEEHR - Other segment information:
TERER Depreciation and amortisation 25,172 8,585 - 33,757
AOBHE Unallocated depreciation 2,969
36,726
ERRAY Capital expenditure 16,698 5,852 8,344 30,894
AOBBARFS Unallocated capital expenditure 5,297
36,191
HENE  BER Loss on disposal of items of
REEEZEBE property, plant and
HE equipment, net 58 29 - 87
GFERE Provision for inventories 11,050 1,000 - 12,050
EmRERE Provision for product warranty 500 - - 500
EWE ZERRE Impairment of trade
FE receivables, net 4,697 - - 4,697
BERE A RER Gain on dilution of an interest in
W an associate 3,073 - - 3,073
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4. DEER(E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) HESHE (b) Geographical segments
TREIWAEEREE_ZZTNEF The following tables present revenue and certain
RZZZNF=ZA=+—HILFE asset and expenditure information for the
2RO BEOWARETEERX Group's geographical segments for the years
HEF - ended 31 March 2009 and 2008.

At

e ENEE
BE (BERAN) (BEBR) % 0l hR GRER
Mainland Other Asian
China  markets
(otherthan  (including North Middle
Hong Kong Hong Kong) Japan)  America Europe East Consolidated
TR TER TR TER TER THR THR
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000

BZ-ZEAFE  Yearended
=ZA=1-H 31 March 2009

LEE

PEUA: Segment revenue:
HEFHREPE Sales to external customers 108,106 26,621 544,914 32,184 2,074 32,519 746,418

HtpBER Other segment

information:
PEREE Segment assets 369,780 269,708 47,512 - - - 687,000
BREY Capital expenditure 1,592 20,054 21 - - - 21,867

HE-ZZN\E Year ended
ZA=1+-H 31 March 2008
IFE
AERKA Segment revenue:
BEFIREE Sales to external customers 122,330 31,326 688,428 57,354 14,460 26,834 940,732

EAgEs: Other segment
information:
NEEE Segment assets 449 877 294,462 31,416 - - - 775,755
ERREY Capital expenditure 5,932 30,084 175 - - - 36,191
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5. WA~ EtR ARz 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
WABSERAEENEEE  RFAE Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents
HEERNEEEEFERAERERRS the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances
FrINEEREE o for returns and trade discounts during the year.

WA~ ARSI DT An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as
follows:
—ETAF ZETNF
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
WA Revenue
HEEY Sale of goods 746,418 940,732
HAl A Other income
AR5 B U A Service fee income 8,977 12,246
HITHEMA Bank interest income 2,816 8,157
BAFERABRR Interest income from investments at
2B R BIA fair value through profit or loss 2,682 2,689
A ERER B A Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments 824 215
Hith Others 2,674 6,107
17,973 29,414
Wz Gains
AFEUE(E18) - %48 « Fair value gains/(losses), net:
HHERE Available-for-sale investments (transfer
(R EREEL) from equity on disposal) - 212
BEAFELABRR Investments at fair value through
ZIEE profit or loss (479) 321
TEemITAEEE Derivative financial assets 3,974 6,668
PTHESRIAAE Derivative financial liabilities (2,517) (3,775)
S — BN THEzR 2 zE  Gain on dilution of an interest in an associate - 3,073
HEDE  BELEES Gain on disposal of items of property,
HE 2 Wi plant and equipment 366 _
1,344 6,499
19,317 35,913
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6. HBAEE 6. LOSS BEFORE TAX
AEEBRBAERENER,(GEA) T The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/
BIE: (crediting):

ZEBEAF —ETNF
2009 2008
k3 FER FHET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BHEFERK Cost of inventories sold 572,861 751,181
e Depreciation 14 30,107 31,264
TERTHE R 2 TR Recognition of prepaid lease
payments 15 454 416
MM Research and development expenses:
B R Deferred development costs
[B#N amortised 16 4,289 5,046
REFHRZ Current year expenditure 80,380 77,578
84,669 82,624
BT RIEFEE Minimum lease payments under
HEMKEHEE operating leases in respect
At of land and buildings 11,774 13,231
=BT B Auditors’ remuneration 1,500 1,680
EERMFX Employee benefit expense
(RIEERHE (including directors’
GEDE remuneration (note 8)):
B R BN 5 Wages and salaries and
benefits in kind 199,094 190,809
AR 2 B 5% Equity-settled share option
RARE ST expense 34 395 661
RIREF B R Pension scheme contributions 7,660 7,563
s BRI R Less: Forfeited contributions - (88)
RRET B FUREER Net pension scheme contributions* 7,660 7,475
207,149 198,945
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6. HAlEEGE) 6. LOSS BEFORE TAX (Continued)
—EENF —ET)NF
2009 2008
P FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
EH =% - B8 Foreign exchange differences, net 546 (1,251)
FEUR B & N B BR TR Impairment of amounts due

e from associates 19 1,970 159
EWE ZERFURE - F5E Impairment of trade receivables, net 24 805 4,697
YZ - R kA Impairment of items of property,

B ERE plant and equipment 14 1,362 -
TFEEME Provision for inventories 8,132 12,050
EmRERE Product warranty provision 800 500
HEME - BEMRE (Gain)/loss on disposal of items

5B (FHEWZERIN) of property, plant and equipment

2z (Wzs) /B8 (other than a leasehold property),

FER net (366) 87
* RZZETNEF=A=1+—8 KA * At 31 March 2008, the Group had forfeited

A FR DA BIDRCE SR SR G & ) LR AR AT 14 contributions of HK$88,000 available to reduce its
T2 BRI A88,000/4 T © contributions to the pension schemes in future years.
7. & A 7. FINANCE COSTS
rEH
Group
—EETNF —ETNF
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
MEFRNEHEEZHME Interest on interest-bearing bank borrowing
RITIEE TS wholly repayable within five years 8 54
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ESMe

ARBEEBAIHMBERRRTRE?
EFHRANT EHRR ) REBR ARG
TeVERATIHEFANESMEMT

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

rEE

Group
ZE2EAEF —ZTNEF
2009 2008
FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
e Fees 512 512

HthBi< : Other emoluments:

e BEMEEYAE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 10,750 10,714
HRFE 2 e Performance related incentive payments 20 -
B BB LRRIEREF Employee share option benefits 126 200
RIREF B R Pension scheme contributions 360 345
11,256 11,259
11,768 11,771

RBEFE  ETEECHRERARE
PR B IRTG 1R T A R BB e R A AT
IR T HESRAE - E— SIS
MR T34 - ZFBARBENRFE
TR B HER > YEREBHAER
BRAER - M AXFEMBHRERNES
BENEBRR EXNEEMEWER -

In prior years, certain directors were granted share
options in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option scheme of the Company, further
details of which are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in the income statement over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosures.
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8. EEM<(H) 8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued)
() BYFHITES (a) Independent non-executive directors

ERARFARBIFRITEEZ The fees paid to independent non-executive
RS directors during the year were as follows:

—ZThEF ZTT)N\F

2009 2008

FTHERT FHTT

HK$'000 HK$'000

Bk fHesns . cxa+  Yung Wing Ki, Samuel w, » 128 128

] BB, Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 128 128

THX Wong Kon Man, Jason 128 128

384 384

RAF R E B IERITEES There were no other emoluments payable to the

NEMME(ZZZNE : &) - independent non-executive directors during the

year (2008: Nil).
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8. EEME(E) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) BITEER-FBITES (b) Executive directors and a non-executive
director
e BM =53] EEE% &I
we REWANE Szt BRERA HE 54 @it
Salaries, Performance
allowances related  Employee Pension
and benefits incentive share option scheme Total
Fees inkind  payments benefits contributions remuneration

TRL ThL T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

“EENE 2009
HTES Executive directors:
BEZ cpmt Tam Wai Ho, Samson e - 2,718 - - 60 2,778
BEx Tam Wai Tong, Thomas - 2,653 - - 60 2,713
EliEES Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian - 579 = - 27 606
AATE Kazuhiro Otani - 1,598 - 36 63 1,697
STy Lee Koon Hung - 1,145 - 36 54 1,235
B Fok Ting Yeung, James - 1,018 - 18 47 1,083
EER Luk Chui Yung, Judith - 1,039 20 36 49 1,144
- 10,750 20 126 360 11,256
FHTES: Non-executive director:
5k Lo Chi Chung, William 128 - = = - 128
128 10,750 20 126 360 11,384
“FE\% 2008
#1785 Executive directors:
BRF pmt Tam Wai Ho, Samson s - 2,705 - - 60 2,765
ERE Tam Wai Tong, Thomas - 2,623 - - 60 2,683
EEES Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian - 731 - 7 27 765
AAFE Kazuhiro Otani - 1,681 - 59 62 1,802
TRt Lee Koon Hung - 1,139 - 59 52 1,250
EEH Fok Ting Yeung, James - 1,004 - 30 46 1,080
BERR Luk Chui Yung, Judith - 831 - 45 38 914
- 10,714 - 200 345 11,259
FHNTES: Non-executive director;
BB Lo Chi Chung, William 128 - - - - 128
128 10,714 - 200 345 11,387
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8. EEM=(#E) 8.

RAFR  WTEERTIEMRHRER
RAEREEAME(ZTTN\F &) -

9. LERSFES 9.

RAFRAREEESHFREERENE(ZF
TN\F:MB)ES EMESHBECER
EXHiES c AFEEEBH—HR(ZFEEN
F:-R)BRIFFEFEENTF B

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2008: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included four (2008: four) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of
the remuneration of the one (2008: one) non-director,

N highest paid employee for the year are as follows:

AEE

Group
—EThF —ZEENF
2009 2008
FHER FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
e EMREYNZ Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,183 1,147
ERIFEE 2 BE Performance related incentive payments - 24
BB ELRERF Employee share option benefits 20 33
RIRET BB Pension scheme contributions 52 51
1,255 1,255

RBEFE  —SREHFESREDH
HAAEEMRHENIRGER T EERR
#OE-THBENMBEWERMEI4Z
WEAN - RFEEIRENRFETINE
HAHER - YEREBHANEEERA
R Mt AR FEMBHRERRNVSEIC
BREREXNEEHIEEREMSRE
A o

In prior years, share options were granted to a non-
director, highest paid employee in respect of his
services to the Group, further details of which are
included in the disclosures in note 34 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised to the income statement over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above non-director,
highest paid employee’s remuneration disclosures.
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10. BiE 10. TAX
AN [E A S B 30 M8 B A (BB FE R No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
Ba A - W mEREANGEREE(Z as the Company did not generate any assessable profits
ZTN\FE |E) o Hihih R 2 FERTOR T arising in Hong Kong during the year (2008: Nil). Taxes
T JHARB AN G A8 & TG P E 2 BIZR Bk A on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
R 2 RAE - R KBRS ME the rates of tax prevailing in the respective countries/
MRS - jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based on

current legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

—EZhF —TT)N\F
2009 2008
TERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RER : Group:

REE — Efhihf= Current — Elsewhere 279 324
IRAE (MI5E32) Deferred (note 32) - (2,008)

NEFEHIAENR(BE) Total tax charge/(credit)
B for the year 279 (1,684)
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10. BIE(E) 10. TAX (Continued)
AR A B 1 LA A &) K HL B B8 A A A reconciliation of the tax credits applicable to loss
AEEREAEREAE o HEL HENE before tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions
BB EFE2BES L (BE)HE - B in which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled
MERBREBEERR) BRI X 2 % to the tax expense/(credit) at the effective tax rates,
AR - and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the
statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as
follows:
NEE Group
ZEENE —ETNE
2009 2008
FTERT FET
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
BAlEE Loss before tax (64,468) (16,579)
EATEHERAE 2 FIE Tax at the statutory tax rates (11,055) 171 (3,219) 19.4
HEEHEEELER Losses attributable to
jointly-controlled entities 288 (0.4) 191 (1.1)
NG Losses attributable to associates - - 62 0.4)
BENEZ WA Income not subject to tax (1,960) 3.0 (2,511) 15.2
TR Z X Expenses not deductible for tax 4,232 (6.6) 448 (2.7)
ERIEER M A a4 Tax losses not carried forward
AR R LR 2 for offsetting future
FERTL G ] 2 B518 assessable profits, due to
concession 1,968 (3.0) 2,435 (14.7)
BERESHEZHIEA Tax losses utilised from
gl previous periods (486) 0.8 - -
KR FIAEE Tax losses not recognised 6,375 (9.9) 1,536 (9.3)
Hith Others 917 (1.4) (626) 3.8
BRAEEERHERTE Tax charge/(credit) at the
Z BB/ (BE) Group's effective rate 279 (0.4) (1,684) 10.2
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10.

11.

BiE () 10.

REBE-ZTF-A=+—HItFE
BEAEBBR(BER]) mAEEETH
J& A 8174 1999/2000 4F & 2004/2005 F 5
MEFETHIEES - ARBBRINEE
LN BTG ES - WE BL1999/2000
F 2£2002/2003 4F 3R T F [Z 3 HARBEMEF|
BRTE - AEBE AR BIREEF)
BRIHRLESZ BERERBLEZET
R AREBTH82000/2001 F R
FE2188,0008 LHBHRITER_EZ
ANEZAZt+RALEFERNEEREE
4,600,000/ 7T 2 EHiZ o

1999/2000 FF £ 2002/2003 F R EEE 2
RIBIER IS AT T BB LB S FERT 31
tRERTEMBAZFHAER - HHHE
BIEETPMERERRELRE - ARF
EEZAR REIUBEEEXRE
% BMABAEBEREFHTHREMNE
FEE AL REER 2 BB =AM
MEERE T GELERBIRIARIE -

RATREZEAELEER 11.
BE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HIFEAR

AIREFEARGEREE-FEEIAL
NEB KR 2 E51846,207,0008 7T ( —
TE N\ 137,000/870) (BH5E35(b)) °

TAX (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD”) initiated a
tax audit on certain group companies for the years of
assessment from 1999/2000 to 2004/2005. As the IRD
is still conducting the tax review on these companies,
it has issued protective profits tax assessments to
them for the years of assessment from 1999/2000 to
2002/2003. The Group has lodged objections with
the IRD against the protective profits tax assessments.
According to the holdover notice issued by the IRD, the
Group had paid profits tax of HK$188,000 for the year
of assessment 2000/2001 and purchased Tax Reserve
Certificates totalling HK$4,600,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2006.

These protective profits tax assessments for the years of
assessment from 1999/2000 to 2002/2003 mainly relate
to a dispute over the deductibility of certain expenses
for tax assessment purposes. The tax audit is in progress
and a final settlement has not yet been reached. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, after
taking professional advice from its tax adviser, there are
reasonable grounds to object the protective assessments
under dispute and accordingly, the existing provision
made is adequate and the tax audit will not result in
material additional tax liability.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2009 includes a loss of
HK$46,207,000 (2008: HK$137,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(note 35(b)).
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12. RE

EFeTRIMRBE_ZENF=A
=t HEFERNEMRE(ZEZN
Fm) o

13. ARAEERREFEARGE
RER

(a) BREXER

BREREBDIRBEARR A RERS
B AL AR E B 1864,673,000
BT (ZZEE)\E : 15,250,000%
TL) RAFERNB BTG 2
9%01,197,663,029( —ZTZ )\ 4 ¢
1,197,650,871)5T &

(b) WMEREBRER

HE-TEAF=A=t—ALR
—ETN\FSAS+—BILFES
SREEEERAIIE - BPER
rE SRR R EMTEHER
BRI A M -

12.

13.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any
dividend (2008: Nil) for the years ended 31 March
2009.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share amount
is based on the loss for the year attributable
to equity holders of the Company of
HK$64,673,000 (2008: HK$15,250,000) and
the weighted average of 1,197,663,029 (2008:
1,197,650,871) shares in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share amounts for the years
ended 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2008 have
not been presented as the share options had an
anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for
these years.
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14. Y% BENRRE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
gL ZER BER IRk
REF NEEE RERZR B I# e EEIE 2
Leasehold Leasehold ~ Furniture, Con-
landand  improve- fixturesand Plantand  Toolings Motor  struction
buildings ments equipment machinery and moulds  vehicles in progress Total
Tién Tén Tén Tin Tén Tén TEn TEn
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
“EENE=A=1-A 31 March 2009
RZFENE=A=T-BR  At31March 2008 and
“ETN\ENA-A at 1 April 2008:
Ak Cost 72676 37823 90726 133139 117913 10,702 424 463,403
ZithE Accumulated depreciation ~ (19,026)  (28,792)  (78,675) (120,836) (104,440)  (8,835) - (360,604)
EmEE Net carrying amount 53,650 9,031 12051 12303 13473 1,867 424 102,799
WoZE)\ENA-R At 1 April 2008, net of
BB EHTERAE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 53,650 9,031 12051 12303 13473 1,867 424 102,799
FE Additions - 511 2,376 5,575 8,685 - 1,094 18241
RERHENE Depreciation provided during
the year (1489)  (4395)  (4534)  (7.853) (11,047) (789) - (30,107)
HE Impairment (1,362) - - - - - - (1,362)
e Disposals - (23) (45) (1 (1,18) - - (1,255)
fEES Transfers - 731 - - - - (731) -
E 5 E7 Exchange realignment 1,005 188 68 283 97 26 10 1,677
R-BENE=R=1-H" At 31 March 2009, net of
BHRZHAERAE accumulated deprecation
and impairment 51,804 6,043 9916 10307 10,022 1,104 797 89,993
RZEENE=A=1-H At 31 March 2009:
WA Cost 74026 39010 86261 128493 124887 10,803 797 464,277
ZERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (22,222)  (32.967)  (76,345) (118,186) (114,865)  (9.699) - (374,284)
BEZE Net carrying amount 51,804 6,043 9916 10307 10,022 1,104 797 89,993
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14. Y% BERRE(E) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
Rt FE- BRR IAR
REF  WERE RERGA e I# B ERIR 2%
Leasehold  Leasehold  Furniture, Con-
landand  improve- fixturesand  Plantand  Toolings Motor  struction
buildings ments equipment  machinery and moulds  vehicles in progress Total

TEr  TER  TER  TETL  TER  TER  TET  TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

“EE\EZAST-H 31 March 2008

RIEELEZA=+-BR  At31March 2007 and

2Z/\ENA-A at 1 April 2008:
AR Cost 67,276 32,335 88,065 129524 105987 10,156 1444 434787
ZiHE Accumulated depreciation ~ (16,294)  (23,650)  (81317) (112,091)  (91,142)  (7,437) - (331931)
REEE Net carrying amount 50,982 8,685 6,743 17433 14,845 2,719 1,444 102,856
RZESLEMA-A- At 1 April 2007, net of
BNk E:HE accumulated depreciation 50,982 8,685 6,748 17433 14,845 2,719 1444 102,856
HE Additions - 231 8,613 2,975 9,661 156 - 23,716
RERHENE Depreciation provided during
the year (1462)  (3803)  (3.408)  (9,849) (11,604)  (1,138) - (31,264)
e Disposals - - (47) (25) (15) - - (87)
LR Transfers - 1,167 - - - - (1167) -
EH & Exchange realignment 4130 671 145 1,769 586 130 147 7578
R-EFENE=A=1-H" At 31 March 2008, net of
BHRZ:HE accumulated deprecation 53,650 9031 12051 12303 13413 1,867 44 102,799
RZFEN\EZA=1-H At 31 March 2008:
A Cost 72,676 37,823 90,726 133,139 117913 10,702 024 463,403
ZifiTE Accumulated depreciation ~~ (19,026)  (28792)  (78,675) (120,836) (104,440)  (8,835) - (360,604)
RHRE Net carrying amount 53,650 9,031 12,051 12,303 13473 1,867 04 102,79
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14. Y% BERIREE) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
REEAREERE T REF ZRETF The net book values of the Group’s leasehold land and
BT buildings at the balance sheet date are analysed as
follows:
—BEAF ZEENF
2009 2008
FET FH&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REBZHRFHHEE Medium term leases in Hong Kong 9,138 9,418
RHBEZRFHEE Medium term leases in Mainland China 42,666 44,232
51,804 53,650
15. FENHEXRE 15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
rEH
Group

—EZThEF ZEE)N\F
2009 2008
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
AROEOA—HBZEEE Carrying amount at 1 April 18,073 9,214
byl Addition - 8,344
RAFEEHER(MIE6) Recognised during the year (note 6) (454) (416)
FEH B3 Exchange realignment 436 931
R=A=+—HBZEmE Carrying amount at 31 March 18,055 18,073

FIATENZIE - e N Current portion included in prepayments,
Hib IR R Z iR Eh 3D deposits and other receivables (459) (429)
ERBNEL D Non-current portion 17,596 17,644
AET NP RT AP FERRAERE - The leasehold lands are held under a medium term

lease and are situated in Mainland China.
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16. EFERIEEA 16. DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS
REH
Group
—gEAE  —TINF
2009 2008
FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RUA—H At 1 April:
24N Cost 33,407 29,276
RETEHEMORE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (27,548) (22,502)
R EE Net carrying amount 5,859 6,774
RUA—BZHKA Cost, net of accumulated amortisation
R KRE and impairment, at 1 April 5,859 6,774
18N — R EB 6 B Additions — internal development 3,626 4,131
F e R (FRte) Amortisation provided during the year
(note 6) (4,289) (5,046)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 5,196 5,859
R=A=+—8 At 31 March:
BN Cost 37,033 33,407
R MORE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (31,837) (27,548)
BRMEEE Net carrying amount 5,196 5,859
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17. HEBLARER 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AT
Company
—EEAE ZER)\F
2009 2008
FERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEETIRE - IR Unlisted investments, at cost 269,334 269,334
e B A T BR X Due from subsidiaries 767,246 767,266
FEN B A TR Due to subsidiaries (194,356) (193,344)
842,224 843,256
o REY Less: Impairment? (314,334) (269,334)
527,890 573,922
# HRASEE THEBARFERS # An impairment was recognised for interests in

B 18 - W E 5t B8R @ E 269,334,000
B (RMBREBEN (ZZEZEN
& 1 269,334,000 0) 2 & T I L
MEEERRE - RAFER - ZI
45,000,000 T (ZEZEN\F : &) 2
SRABETA FE UM BB A RIBR FRAP RERR

ARRNEGEERERFEEMNBARZ
B METEGROR - BB RI B AR 2 #
mEBAEMRETR - BERMBA
ABTHAZREBERZE THHRARA
ZFHARRE -

BRERtT_HEARNEEZERKRHER
&) Bk 5% 3,000,000 B T (Z T N\ F -
3,000,000 7)) + FEU K FEA B /&8 1 B BR
HEBEER  REREETEENS - %K
H FEEREQAFEES -EFRE -
B itz B AR 2 SR EANE
BA%BT-ZMEANEE  HREERER
W5 BIETRE o

subsidiaries with carrying amounts of HK$269,334,000
(before deducting the impairment loss) (2008:
HK$269,334,000) because certain subsidiaries of the
Group have been making loss persistently. During the
year, an additional impairment of HK$45,000,000
(2008: Nil) was recognised on the amounts due from
subsidiaries.

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses the
prospects and financial positions of its subsidiaries, on
an individual basis, as to whether there is any indication
of impairment of its interests in subsidiaries or any
impairment loss previously recognised for subsidiaries
in prior years may no longer exist or may need to be
adjusted accordingly.

Except for amounts due from subsidiaries of
HK$3,000,000 (2008: HK$3,000,000) which are
repayable within twelve months, the amounts due
from and to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion
of the directors, the balances with subsidiaries are not
repayable within twelve months from the balance sheet
date except for the amounts aforementioned and are
therefore shown in the balance sheet as non-current.
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17. MEA Rz (&) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
FEWBABZFBHT Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
B BRTLERE/ AREEERE
AMREE 0 TEMRAEE ZAEA TEEH
Nominal value
Place of of issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
2% registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
HE Gk
Direct Indirect
EEMRERERAR & 10078 7T - 100 RAER
Concept Technology Hong Kong HK$100 Investment
Industries Limited holding
Favourable Outcome Limited* RBRTHEE E - 100 BB
British Virgin Islands Us$1 Investment
("BVI") holding
ERERNETARAAY hEARLNE 45,000,000/ - 100 BERHE
Global Asia High-tech ([HE]) HK$45,000,000 EfEM
Electronics Co., Ltd.®" The People’s Manufacture
Republic of China and trading
(The "PRC")/ of electronic
Mainland China products
Group Sense (China) Limited* RBETEE E 100 - REER
BVI Us$1 Investment
holding
Group Sense (Dongguan) Limited*  HBRLEHE /HhE 10%7T - 100 EEE
BVI/Mainland China uss10 Property
holding
Group Sense (Holding) Limited*  EBERZEE 3,000% 51 100 - AR
BVI US$3,000 Investment
holding
Group Sense (S.E.A.) Limited* RBEIEE E 100 - REER
BVI Us$1 Investment
holding
EEYEHNER AT EED 100%7T 100 - REER
Group Sense Cyberspace Limited* ~ Samoa us$100 Investment
holding
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17. MEA Rz (&) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
FTEWBRBEZFEAT : (&) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)
TR ERTEERE/ KRR EERE
AMREE ZRAEE ZEDY TEEHR
Nominal value
Place of of issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
%% registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
HE Gk
Direct Indirect
BEERDA Eit TER - 100 A RHEE
Group Sense Limited Hong Kong 1,0007T EFEM
BRERFONE Design and
EILRH trading of
Ordinary shares electronic
HK$1,000 products
Non-voting 5%
deferred shares
HK$200,000@
Group Sense Manufactory EEELES,/F E - 100 RUEETER
Company Limited BVI/Mainland China US$1 MR
Provisions of
subcontracting
services for
electronic
products
BERERRRA Eit 2B - 100 REER
Group Sense Manufactory Hong Kong HK$2 Investment
Company Limited holding
EEBYMBRERLF Bk 287 - 98.95 Rt RIHE
Group Sense Mobile-Tech Hong Kong HK$2 BIER
Limited Design and
trading of
electronic
products
EEPDAZRAR AR HEEHS TER 98.95 - REER
Group Sense PDA Cayman Islands 2,115,8377C Investment
Holdings Limited ABRRR holding
17,182% T

Ordinary shares
US$2,115,837
Series A
preferred shares
Us$17,182
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17. MIBATIREZE(E) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

TEMBRABZFHEBLT : (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

ML, ERTEERE KRR EERE
MRS L AEfRAEE ZEA TEEHR
Nominal value
Place of of issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
2% registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
HE i
Direct Indirect
BREZELEMRBRAF BE 10078 7T - 98.95 Rt RHE
Group Sense PDA Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ETEM
Design and
trading of
electronic
products
BEYHRMR(BEE)BRAR & 10078 7T - 100 REER
Group Sense Software Technology Hong Kong HK$100 Investment
(Hong Kong) Limited holding
Aok JI-Tt22 BA 60,000,000A - 100 R RHAE
Kabushiki Kaisha Japan JPY60,000,000 BTER
Group Sense* Design and
trading of
electronic
products
Supreme Style Technology RBEZHS 100%ET - 100 RERR
Limited* BVI us$100 Investment
holding
ERPARBRIRIR i ARH50,000,000 - 70 R RHE
BRARG* The PRC/ RMB50,000,000 ETEREEMS
Mainland China Design
and trading
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17. MIBRARRER (&) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
FEWBRATZFFBLT : (8) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

MaE Notes:

(1 RINERT] (1) Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise.

) IRFE AR 19 3 B R AR B sk B R (2) The deferred shares practically carry no rights to
AR BHERRR K& 2 385 o H (A dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at
RERGIARE EIREZER - IRE any general meeting of the company or to participate
T B2 EA DR © in any distribution on winding up.

3) NEERS > BEREEAT - (3) Limited liability company established in Mainland

China.

* RIEE LS I EFEFT s E b 2ok * Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other
ST EFSFT R B R o member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

TREVESRAEANEE Y A EFEE The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

EEAYERARAEEEERE S BL which, in the opinion of the directors, principally

CHEBAT  c BEERA  BHEMHED affected the results for the year or formed a substantial

Y SIS EMERBRTE o portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details

of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

18. HEZ4IEEER 18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

EE

Group
ZEBEAF —TT)N\F
2009 2008
FER FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EIEEEFE Share of net assets 2,927 4,321
eSS Goodwill on acquisition 6,680 6,680
9,607 11,001
&~ — H A 2 1 & §8 AR 096,000 7T (= The amount due to a jointly-controlled entity of
TTNF : B)IPERAEBRBAR HK$96,000 (2008: Nil), included in the Group’s current
o REER . 2R KEE TR - liabilities, is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed

terms of repayment.
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18.

HEEHEEERS(E) 18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (Continued)
HEZEFIERFENAT Particulars of the jointly-controlled entities are as
follows:
Frse BT e, Aok
R4} 35 Eidsich ] FERER RRE 2H TEEH
Particulars Place of Percentage of
%% of issued incorporation/ Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held  registration interest power sharing activities
HERRARRA 700,000/ 7T & 35 35 35 BERER
Neoplatec Technology HK$700,000 Hong Kong THERART
Company Limited HEER
Manufacture,
design
and trading
of in-mould
technology
related
products
EEMIZERER RMBS5,402,000 The PRC 19.78 20 19.78 BERHE
BRDA(EEE]) EFEESM
Chongging New Manufacture
Standard Medical and trading
Equipment Co., Ltd. of electronic
("Chongging New medical
Standard"”) appliances

AR ZEF B EES B AR R REER
5o

EENECVBFEA+—_A=+—08%
FHER o NEB 2 M BHmKRTIBEZILR
THEERN—A—HE=ZA=+—HHMH
ZERRGIELARE

The above interests in jointly-controlled entities are
indirectly held by the Company.

The financial statements of Chongging New Standard
have the financial year end of 31 December. The
Group’s financial statements are adjusted for the
material transactions of this jointly-controlled entity
between 1 January and 31 March.
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18. HEEZEHERER(E) 18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (Continued)

TRIFHNEERRA 2 A KE LR EZE The following table illustrates the summarised financial
FIERBY B EREE information of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities:

ZBThF ZTT)N\F

2009 2008

FExT FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE(GHRAIZH TR EE  Share of the jointly-controlled entities’

kEafE: assets and liabilities:
BB E Current assets 20,282 3,767
EmMEBEE Non-current assets 871 701
nBBE Current liabilities (18,226) (147)
BEFE Net assets 2,927 4,321
—EEAEF ZETNF
2009 2008
FHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE(R R B 22 Share of the jointly-controlled entities’
LEE results:
WA Revenue 279 66
LN Other income 3 44
282 110
X e Total expenses (2,026) (1,204)
g E1E Loss after tax (1,744) (1,094)
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19. HEQATER 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

rEE

Group
—EZThEF —ETNF
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EREEFE Share of net assets - _
UGS & B BR AR Amounts due from associates 13,073 7,722
DRIk Less: Impairment# (9,335) (4,320)
3,738 3,402
# HRZERAEEE T 2B &R a5 ER # An impairment was recognised for the amounts

BEE - ME st BREE13,073,000%8
T(RMBREEBERN) (ZZTNF ¢
4,320,000/8 7T ) 2 FE Wi &~ R BRFAAE
RIRE °

e & N RIRFOBRER B BT

due from associates with a carrying amount of
HK$13,073,000 (before deducting the impairment
loss) (2008: HK$4,320,000) because these associates
of the Group have been making loss persistently.

The movements in the provision for impairment of
amounts due from associates are as follows:

Group
—EZhEF —ETNF
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REH At the beginning of year 4,320 4,161
hEMBEMNBEREH HEE» Reclassified from other payables## 3,200 -
B ERREEE (M:T6) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 1,970 159
i8R Write-off (155) —
REL At the end of year 9,335 4,320

# BB FE36() R A& 2 51 - R
FTEEAEBER —BEQAAK
3,999,000/ 7L Z $R1TE FUR HIER
WEWEEBA - £ 3,200,000/ 7T
Z ERE ARSI E M IR 5
B -HBE-_TTNEF=-R=1+—HILF
ER - ASBEEEZBEQREEED
F323,950,0008 TLiR1THEFAEE - W AR
JE 1 #5%3,200,00078 7T 2 B E B E A
EREREFT D EE RIS R FRR
SEEE -

##

As further detailed in note 36(b), the Group has
provided a bank guarantee of HK$3,999,000 to an
associate and was fully utilised in prior years, of which
HK$3,200,000 was provided for and was included
in other payables in prior years. During the year
ended 31 March 2009, the Group has settled the
utilised banking facility of HK$3,950,000 on behalf
of the associate, and accordingly, the provision of
HK$3,200,000 was reclassified from other payables to
impairment losses on amounts due from associates.
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19. HBEQTERS(E) 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
JiE U B 5 N B BR 3X3,738,00008 7T (— 2 F The amounts due from associates of HK$3,738,000
J\EE © 3,402,000/ 7T ) Ty B IE R A K B (2008: HK$3,402,000), included in the Group’s current
PEED  REEHR . RS REEFER assets, are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
HY o terms of repayment.
FEBE AT ZFEOT Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:
BT MR AEEEGHE
RGP FHE i3 EEZzES FEEK
Percentage
of ownership
Particulars Place of interest
£ of issued incorporation/ attributable Principal
Name shares held registration to the Group activities
FREEEAGRAR(T&ER]) 3,500/ 7T B 35 IRAEREER
ACME Tech Precision HK$3,500 Hong Kong Manufacture
Mould Limited and trading
("ACME")* of moulds
BN RERBRAF 45,0007 7T HB 45 EET
([HmE+=]) HK$45,000 Hong Kong Inactive
Sinocard Technology Limited
(”Sinocard”)
* RSB K TR E AT s H b 225k * Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other

SR EBPTREIRK BB -

EREVNEERAREAKBZAFERE
BEARFESIANAREEEFETER

DZBERE c BERA  REEM

RANFEREHERBRITE ©

R FE1h %

ElWNSIE:

s
Jr AEA

tE A RBRBAAREER

CAREERILEREE

HHEMEMMNE RER - NEBERASF
ERRFZAEREEBERREERSD

R 5814,000/8 T ( —ZZ/)\4F -

139,000

77T ) 56,297,000 T (ZEZT )\ F -

5,483,000/ 7T) ©

member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of losses of ACME and Sinocard because the share
of losses of these associates exceeded the Group’s
interests in the associates. The Group’s unrecognised
share of losses of these associates for the current year
and cumulatively amounted to HK$814,000 (2008:
HK$139,000) and HK$6,297,000 (2008: HK$5,483,000)
respectively.
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19.

20.

B N R () 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
TRAAFNESIERR o AREBBE R The following table illustrates the summarised financial
A BERBLE information of the Group's associates extracted from

their management accounts:
ZEEAF —ETNEF
2009 2008
FHERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE Assets 7,255 7,045
aE Liabilities (17,130) (16,106)
WA Revenue 5,060 5,022
REEZEIE Loss for the year (814) (317)
AHHERE 20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
rEE
Group

—EENF —ETNF
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
AN Z IE ET AR E Unlisted equity investments, at cost 36,094 36,094
Y& REY Less: Impairment# (10,000) (10,000)
26,094 26,094
# HRIREXRREXRE  WERKEE # An impairment was recognised for an unlisted

32,055,000 7T (AR 0 BR B E A5 1B AT)
(ZZTZT)\£ : 32,055,000 7C) 2 &
FIELTEEERBE o RAFRRME
WESSH(—FT)\F &) -

FREERRBERAESKRE  BREEHFER
AHHERE -

investment with a carrying amount of HK$32,055,000
(before deducting the impairment loss) (2008:
HK$32,055,000) due to the non-performance of
the investment. There was no movement in the
impairment during the year (2008: Nil).

The above investments consist of investments in equity
securities which were designated as available-for-sale
investments.
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21. BUR-—SERHERN 21. AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT-VENTURE
PARTNER
B —& BB RN EEIR - 6% F The amount due from a joint-venture partner is
MEFE(ZEZENF  6%) MBER=F unsecured, bears interest at a rate of 6% (2008: 6%)
—ZETATOBEREEER - per annum and will be fully repayable on 14 October
2010.
22. RE®mS 22. LONG TERM DEPOSITS
T~EE
Group

ZEEBAF ZTT)N\F
2009 2008
FTHExT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000

BEME  BEX Deposit for acquisition of items of property,
BBEFEB RS plant and equipment 550 799
e Rental deposits 1,558 1,387
2,108 2,186
BEMEBIASONE - BMEKERTERZ None of the assets is either past due or impaired. The
WS EEET A | R - AEE financial assets related to receivables for which there
RkeR®E - ERREMBEMSEE N TEE was no recent history of default. The Group's long term
5o deposits are interest-free and their carrying amounts

approximate to their fair values.

23. ®FE 23. INVENTORIES

REME

Group
—ZETAF —ETNF
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
R Raw materials 58,979 86,592
paa- Work in progress 14,714 6,506
BURY G Finished goods 23,050 22,735
96,743 115,833

S (HF) BR2 3 Group Sense (International) Limited - 2009 4 %% Annual Report



BRI EE (58)

Notes to Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
BE-STAF=A=tBALEE

For the year ended 31 March 2009

24, EUWESERN 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES
AEE
Group
—EEAE ZER)\F
2009 2008
FERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EUE SR Trade receivables 131,592 161,749
A Impairment (17,069) (16,264)
114,523 145,485

AEEEERFP B TEUEERAE
17 o MARE—RN F60E0K - HEEF
EAERAEERE - ARBBRESHHE
RER 2 BUGRIBEITBRAR IR BE (=
ERaREERE - aRERETHENE
H 2 8% - BB ZERTAFAE - E8
R ERHIEFE2 ML

AT R IEWE SRR FUAN BB B R B
PR EMNEE B ZRER DT -

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit. The credit period is generally 60 to 90 days.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
Trade receivables are interest-free. Please refer to notes
41 for details of credit risk management.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the
balance sheet date, based on the payment due dates
and net of provisions, is as follows:

REHE

Group
—BEAF ZEENF
2009 2008
FHET FH&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
0E60K 0 - 60 days 106,820 130,950
61E90K 61— 90 days 108 5,722
HBIBIOK Over 90 days 7,595 8,813
114,523 145,485
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24. EBWEZERM(E) 24.

W E ZRFUREREE 2 ZFmT

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements in the provisions for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

rEE
Group
—ZEThEF ZEENF
2009 2008
FET FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R At the beginning of year 16,264 11,567
EHERREESRE TR Impairment losses recognised, net
(Hf7¥6) (note 6) 805 4,697
RFLL At the end of year 17,069 16,264

Fil EWE 5 R FORE B E 2 EE R
OB EE IR E 5 R 517,069,000 % T
(ZZZ )\ : 16,264,00078 7T ) = ik
{8 425,208,000 T ( Z & N\ F :
27,611,000 7T) < BRI BAERKE S
FRINEEHE /R BB IB AR - TEEE AT
ElFZERIRBRIR Z — 280 - ANEE I
REEBBFTAETMERRREMEER

N9
S o
panl

WEERRARER/ATRELRKES

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$17,069,000 (2008: HK$16,264,000)
with a gross carrying amount of HK$25,208,000 (2008:
HK$27,611,000). The individually impaired trade
receivables relate to customers that were in default
or delinquent in payments and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are

R BRE DT neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:
rEE
Group
—BEAF —ET)NF
2009 2008
FET FH&T
HK$’000 HK$'000
RiBHEA S A Neither past due nor impaired 69,975 65,405
BEA—Z=MEA 1 to 2 months past due 33,951 62,673

BHIME=1EA
B AR E = {8 A

2 to 3 months past due 108 4
Over 3 months past due

2,350 6,056

106,384 134,138
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24. EBWEZERM(E) 24.

RIBHRITEREZ KR RBR AR
AR & P AT A B4 R A8

EAHEEREZEUERBRASES
ERFRFNER - RIBBERE - AR
AEERR AREREERIESERK
2 WRA/GEHRIDAT 2BKDE - EAR
ZEERIELRERME - NAEBEL B L
LSBT ERRREMERELS

N

a8

25. AR - REREMGERE 25

- AREERALT

ZEEBERRBHITERNE ZELRE
EBPOT A B R A8k 2 B WRIR ©

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY

None of the assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets related to receivables for which there
was no recent history of default.

26 BMAFERABZRZERE 26. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS
TEH
Group
—EThEF —ETNF
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FLEMEHES Unlisted debt securities,
BATE at fair value
—EHFMETEFFELE — Debentures with fixed
55%%7.5% & interest rates from 5.5%
BB T —TF to 7.5% per annum with
+—ANBE maturity dates from
—ET—HFMmA 8 November 2010 to
—+NAHL 28 April 2014 40,890 41,532
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26.

27.

BAFELABRRZRE(E) 26. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
FXRZIZBEZEANERZZZENEFEZA The above unlisted debt securities at 31 March 2009
=T —RZLEMESFBFERBEAR and 2008 were classified as held for trading.
HHE -
RATERABRKXZKREZ X TFEAR The fair values of investments at fair value through
FEHRAEERBERF 2 IRE AREE profit or loss are determined based on the quoted bid
7E ° prices at the close of business at the balance sheet
date.
RZZEZNFE=ZA=+—8  AEEHEH At 31 March 2009, the Group's investments at fair
IREE16,725,0008 TR A FEGL AERE value through profit or loss with the carrying amount of
RZIBE(ZZTZT)\F : 17,254,000/ 7T) HK$16,725,000 (2008: HK$17,254,000) were pledged
ERER - URGAEE s —HR1ITEX as security for overdraft facilities of the Group's
(PfHE31) o banking facilities (note 31).
TEEmMTIA 27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
FEE
Group
ZEBENE ZTTNF
2009 2008
gE =0 BE BfE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
TR TER FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RHEAINE S 4 Forward currency contracts 596 395 5,717 3,775

EHSMNES K Z REEEE A FERR -
THFERTEEMTAZRS  JHEHAE
TERITER AR MIARIRITAIL ©

REBMEIY FRBINES L - UER
HEXEE  HAITFAHPE i
{1 o JEHRIEEEBITET A AT
BEE#) 1,457,000 T ( — T )\ F
2,893,000/ 7T) - HHBEFARFEARNZ

The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts are
the same as their fair values. The above transactions
involving derivative financial instruments are transacted
with Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
and China Merchant Bank.

The Group has entered into the above forward currency
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures
which did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.
Changes in the fair value of non-hedging currency
derivatives amounting to HK$1,457,000 (2008:
HK$2,893,000) were credited to the income statement
during the year.
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28. HRERREEHEER 28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
EE AT

Group Company
—EENF ZTT)\F ZTBhE —ITT)\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
TR FET FER FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B4 RIRITES Cash and bank balances 105,696 66,982 188 89
TE TR Time deposits 121,600 185,183 - -
BERELEEER Cash and cash equivalents 227,296 252,165 188 89

REER  AEENUARE(TARE D:T
BEzHRe MRS EEEE A77,890,000/%5
JTL(ZZZ)\4F : 80,780,00087T) - AR
BEASERLBRAHMER R BRI
AR HNEE IR G R AETE - BIERMIES
BRT  AEEEEEBEREEEE
HEBHRTBARE LB BHME -

RITREDRBERTERRITEANE 2
FERFERBAE - RFARBEARRE
FX o BEIERERZHRAR - NF—
AE=ZBATE  WREAZEHEHF
A EGREA B © RITFRFRR AR
ERBRATBIERNARALERIRTT

At the balance sheet date, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") amounted to HK$77,890,000 (2008:
HK$80,780,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.
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29. ENESZRRREMGRE 29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
AT RIERNE SRR R ERRIE AR E An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at
HAFTEMRNEE B ZRER D - the balance sheet date, based on the payment due

dates is as follows:

rEHE

Group
—gEAE  —TT)F
2009 2008
FET FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
0ZE60X 0 - 60 days 73,351 103,009
61290k 61— 90 days 1,717 1,606
HBiBI0K Over 90 days 3,188 1,902
78,256 106,517
ENESEFEZZAFE - E—HK5130 The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are

HHE normally settled on 30-day terms.

30, HtENERNKETEE -4% 30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS -

BRALQTF GROUP AND COMPANY
Hibh B RR R ETABWETS - BT Other payables and accruals are interest-free and have
BFERNER - an average term of six months.
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31. HMERTEE 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWING
—EEAF —ZTEN\F
2009 2008
ERFE(%) THET EBEFE%) FET
Effective Effective
interest interest
rEE Group rate (%) HK$'000 rate (%) HK$'000
wE Current
RITIEE - EIEH Bank borrowing, unsecured and
WERN—FNEE repayable within one year 2.5 15,428 1.875 2,594
MIaE - Notes:

(a) REEH - A%016,000,000% T (=
T T )\ 4 : 16,000,000/8 7T ) 2 A&
ERREXRATHA(ZZZTN\F :

&) AEBZBREFRUAEERA
#4920,000,0008 L (=TT N\ F :
20,000,000767@% N ERABZREE

ZETHREEREIR(ME26)

(b) REEB  ARARAEBR AR
15,428,000 8 T ( Z T T N\ F
2,594,000/ 7T ) 2 SRITE IR HEIER -

(0 REERAREZ RITEEAHE -

(d WEER - AEBRTEENRIE
BEERNFERE - EEZ A FHEGBTR

REEE BAERFRIHRORFR SR
BHE -

(a)

The Group’s revolving loan amounting to
HK$16,000,000 (2008: HK$16,000,000), none of
which (2008: Nil) had been utilised as at the balance
sheet date. The Group’s revolving loan is secured
by the pledge of certain of the Group’s investments
at fair value through profit or loss not less than
HK$20,000,000 (2008: HK$20,000,000) (note 26).

The Company has guaranteed the Group's bank
borrowing amounting to HK$15,428,000 (2008:
HK$2,594,000) as at the balance sheet date.

The bank borrowing of the Group is denominated in
Japanese Yen as at the balance sheet date.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowing
approximated to its fair value. The fair value of
borrowing is estimated to be the present value of its
future cash flow, discounted at prevailing interest rate
at the balance sheet date.
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32.

EEB R

REBERBBRIAGIREREE
#9173,374,0008 T ( Z T ZE N F
143,475,000/ 7C) (OB 75 518 - W0 A] AR
PR IR S = 4 B S 1B 2 B A9 R R FEER
B A o AN @ IR B ZE 426,402,000
BIL(ZZEZT N\ 1 45,201,000/ 70) A9 F
BEs1E - WA KRR —ERFAREPARNK
JERBLRF - RZME AT EE B
MERABHERBAFTEAKHEZENW
BARAEBAZHIEER  MHZEHA
ME - WARERRERIBEE -

REPEARIMBECEMESH L - Reh
B KBRS 2 INE R ERINEIRE E TR
ZHREAEBRI0% 2 EHF - RERTE
ER-_ZTTENGF—A—BRER WER
RN_BE+E+_A=+—B2HBELY
BF o fis R B K FE B HNR IS & & FT B Bl A
ERREAERBEHE  BIAHRREY
BREAT - AKEME BABEA
5% o Bt AL E AR R B KRER L
ZHBARINR_EENF—A—HUERE
H 2 BRI R 2 B S BRE T o

R-_ZBENF=ZA=1t—H AEELE
IR B 2 B AT - BE AR R
(R 422 1) B B8 (5 R O Lh) 280 0 7 E A 2 P A5 AR
BEANERETMELENRE EFRE
ZEMBAT - BERRRARZEHIER
R RARRAARAREDIRILFERF] o 70—
ETNF=A=1t—H BREAEEE
THBAR - = QR HRES BB
AELBNCEEL  AEEWERIIML
HAE  MARBYERZSHIAMEL
NRRBAETAEARERETHE A
B(ZZZNF &) -

ARBRERR B EAL BN B RS
IR -

32.

DEFERRED TAX

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong
before IRD assessment of HK$173,374,000 (2008:
HK$143,475,000) that are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group
also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$26,402,000 (2008: HK$45,201,000) that will expire
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised by these subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%.
The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2009, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding dividend taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings, that are subject to
withholding dividend taxes of the Group's subsidiaries,
associates, and jointly-controlled entities established
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it
is not probable that these subsidiaries, associates and
jointly-controlled entities will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future. At 31 March 2009, there was
no significant unrecognised deferred tax liability (2008:
Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain of the Group's subsidiaries,
associates or jointly-controlled entities as the Group has
no liability to additional tax should such amounts be
remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.
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33. R 33. SHARE CAPITAL
R Shares
—gEAE  —TINF
2009 2008
FER FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
JETE Authorised:
3,000,000,000/% &% 3,000,000,000 (2008: 3,000,000,000)
E{E0.10/8 L& Bk ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
(ZZEZNF
3,000,000,000/% ) 300,000 300,000
2EITREE Issued and fully paid:
1,197,663,029/% 1,197,663,029
HREE0.108 T (2008: 1,197,663,029)
B ordinary shares of
—EENEFE HK$0.10 each
1,197,663,0298%) 119,766 119,766

HE_ZZ\F=ZA=+—BLEFEAN During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Company

RATRNAZZHIAT had the following share transaction:

(i) 50,000 17 18 %t 3R A% 1 & 3R B8 4 A (i) The subscription rights of 50,000 share options
TEESR0.202BTHITHE - 42 were exercised at the exercise price of HK$0.202
RERE(CRFTZHAT) A&10,100 per share, resulting in the issue of 50,000 new
7 7T A ¥ 77 50,000 % & A M B ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at a total cash
0. 108 TR @A IL - consideration, before expenses, of HK$10,100.
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33. KRA(H&) 33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
B4 (48) Shares (Continued)
K2BAQNAEBITERRRAFRETE A summary of the transactions during the year ended
R EEEE  BE_ZZ/N\F=A 31 March 2008 with reference to the above movements
ET—HIEFERNEERSZBENT : in the Company’s issued ordinary share capital is as
follows:
ERTRAMA BERTRE BRAEER &g
Issued Share
Number of share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
T TiEn T
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
RZFE+FMA-A At 1 April 2007 1,197,613,029 119,761 409,705 529,466
BATERE L ARE) Share options exercised (i) 50,000 5 5 10
RZZEN\FE=ZA=+-HA-  At31March 2008,
—TT)\FmA-A 1 April 2008 and
L=EENFZA=T—H 31 March 2009 1,197,663,029 119,766 409,710 529,476
BAERE Share options
RARBERRESEIRIBERFETER Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the
T2 BERRERNFIBH N B RERM T share options issued under the scheme are included in
34 - note 34 to the financial statements.
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34,

B RRBREE

ARBRANELRBBAET(FHE)) - 5
B - R MBRBERAEERMEREK
HBEIELEZEEM A ER2EE - &
B2 RERMSEEREARARZESR(E
REUFAITES)  AKEZHMER
RABE AREEFHREMEARE
BEBBREZAL - FER_TT_FN
AZBRRm N (BRIEAE AT A FE K
ERTRIERI) B2 A AR - BRHEA
T o

RIBFAEIEREER TRERITEZES
BEEZBOEBE - NMEBBZETELER
PRAREATE RN A R RIEMR B E 31T
0.210% ° &P HE R ERSEENE
1218 A B R e R A M AT T 37T
ZBMEE - REINAR B ERED %
TTBAD 2 1% © (EAATHER IR ] ) 8 55 8 BX
R — P REARBRRA SR SRR
/e ©

ARG ZES = TBRABREER
R E IRz BHEA TR L ELRERE
BN BV B IEMITEEERAE -
BESN - EAME 1 21E A mA R R 2+
EREKBUIEPTESIRES A 28
BATREESRBREMETZROEE
BB RN MR E BITRD 20.1%
B BN D 2 48 (B8 5,000,000% 7T (1%
BEEBARRARMER) AMIEXEE
RE AR A S EHEAE

BTYAAEEBRTHBEF21ELEA
N BNEERRES BT ZREA
RENZAEEREE - ERHELAR
ROTTERIRERRE - BREREHN
B RAHILNEFRE B TERGEER
H2Z HEARER -

34,

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating, attracting
and retaining eligible participants whose contribution
are vital to the long-term growth and profitability of
the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme include
the Company’s directors, including independent non-
executive directors, other employees or officers of the
Group, advisers or consultants of the Group, or any
person that have business relationship with the Group.
The Scheme was adopted on 2 April 2002 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, and will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval
in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 business days from the date of offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on
a date which is determinable by the directors and is not
later than the expiry date of the Scheme.
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34,

B RRBREE (&)

BARBBZITEEDRERRE © D
AERTIFHREENAARRNDER
FERRER TEREMZMAE IS
B (WEARBRBRNEELERBEETH
HIRIS 83 5 A B R PP 2 S e
B R>ARRBROHEE -

18 55 FRARHE 3T SRR T4 A MR B
W& R ) o

RAFR - BRIRETE - THIE TR
RITHE

34,

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer, and (iii) the nominal value of the
shares of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under
the Scheme during the year:

ZBENE —EENE
2009 2008
ik S IIREF
TEE RAREHAR 11EE RREHA
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price  of options
BT T4 BT T4
BR ik
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
per share per share
REA] At the beginning of year 0.664 35,591 0.690 26,987
FREH Granted during the year = = 0.584 9,430
FRITEE Exercised during the year - - 0.202 (50)
FRE I Forfeited during the year 0.651 (977) 0.647 (776)
FREH Lapsed during the year 0.226 (876) - -
RELL At the end of year 0.676 33,738 0.664 35,591

RE-BBENF=ZA=T—HBIEFEANMT
FEHRBRENITE AN MEFIRER
0.5887T °

The weighted average share price at the date of

exercise for share options exercised during the year
ended 31 March 2008 was HK$0.58.
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34. BAIREE(E) 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
RAER - BREE - BERREZE The movements of the outstanding share options under
BT the Scheme during the year are as follow:

EbCLE
Number of share options
it
3 B BianE k8 & HER
ZEE)E CEIE LRERE (@fERRA) BraRE EL
BA-A ERRE Ehik FhRN EREN  ZAZt-R (B.AE) (B.AE) GREH RERH

Exercise  Atgrant
price of date of
share options **  options ***

Exercise period
Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed of share options BT BT
VY Name or category At 1 April during during during during  At31March  Dateof grant (both dates (5R) (5R)
#LAER of participant 2008 the year the year the year the year 2009 of share options * inclusive) HKS HKS

(DD.MM.YYYY) (DD.MM.YYYY) pershare  pershare

£ Directors
EEFiost Tam WaiHo, Samson» 900,000 - - - - 900,000 19.04.2004 20.01.2005%t0 0950 0920
19.01.2010
&R Tam Wai Tong, Thomas 900,000 - - - - 900,000 19.04.2004 200120052t 0950 0920
19.01.2010
BLEE Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian 400,000 - - - - 400,000 19.04.2004 200120052t 0.950 0920
19.01.2010
400,000 - - - - 400,000 07.08.2006 15.06.20072t0 0554 0.560
14.06.2010
AAHIE Kazuhiro Otani 900,000 - - - - 900,000 19.04.2004 200120052t 0.950 0920
19.01.2010
800,000 - - - - 800,000 03.06.2005 26.04.2000%t0 0.606 0610
25.04.2009
800,000 - - - - 800,000 07.08.2006 15.06.2007Zt0 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
800,000 - - - - 800,000 13.09.2007 08.08.2008zt0 0.584 0495
05.08.2011
IRk Lee Koon Hung 900,000 - - - - 900,000 19.04.2004 200120055t 0950 0920
19.01.2010
800,000 - - - - 800,000 03.06.2005 26.04.20062t0 0.606 0610
25.04.2009
800,000 - - - - 800,000 07.08.2006 15.06.20072t0 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
800,000 - - - - 800,000 13.09.2007 08.08.2008%t0 0584 049
05.08.2011
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BERRESTE(E) 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
AREYA
Number of share options
it
3 B BE7RE Pt §f HE%
23 8 LRHAR (BfERRE) Brane EL
BA-R B ERfl SRl xR ZA=t-R (B.AE) (B.AE) ZfRE RHRE
Exercise  Atgrant
piceof  dateof
share options **  options ***
Exercise period
Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed of share options B A
38 Name or category At 1 Apri during during during during  At31March Date of grant (hoth dates (8R) (8R)
#EAER of participant 2008 the year the year the year the year 2009 of share options * inclusive) HKS HKS
(DD.MM.YYYY) (DD.MM.YYYY) pershare  pershare
E2(8) Directors (Continued)
By FokTing Yeung, James 400,000 - - - (400,000 ) - 12082002 17.06.2003%t0 0250 0.166
16.00.2008
400,000 - - - (400,000 ) - 24.03.2003 20.01.2004Zt0 0.202 0.300
19,01.2009
400,000 - - - - 400,000 19.04.2004 20.01.2005%t0 0.950 0920
19.01.2010
400,000 - - - - 400,000 03.06.2005 26.04.2006Zt0 0606 0610
25.04.2009
400,000 - - - - 400,000 07.08.2006 15.06.20072t0 0.554 0,560
14.06.2010
400,000 - - - - 400,000 13.09.2007 08.08.2008=t0 0.584 049
05.08.201
E23 Luk Chui Yung, Judith 500,000 - - - - 500,000 19.04.2004 20.01.2005%t0 0.950 0920
19.01.2010
500,000 - - - - 500,000 03.06.2005 26.04.2006Zt0 0606 0610
25.04.2009
500,000 - - - - 500,000 19.07.2006 15.06.20072t0 0.554 0,560
14.06.2010
800,000 - - - - 800,000 13.09.2007 08.08.2008=t0 0.584 049
05.08.201
13,900,000 - - - (800,000) 13,100,000
it Others
E8 Employegs 30,000 - - - (30,000 ) - 12.08.2002 17.06.2003%t0 0.250 0.166
16.06.2008
46,000 - - - (46,000 ) - 2403203 2001.2004Zt0 0202 0300
19.01.2009
4,002,000 - - (184,000) - 3,818,000 09.04.2004 20.01.2005%t0 0.950 0.920
19.01.2010
5,102,000 - - (269,000 - 4,833,000 03.06.2005 26.042006%t0 0.606 0610
25.04.2009
6,031,000 - - (274,000 ) - 5,757,000 19.07.2006 15.06.2007Zt0 0554 0560
14.06.2010
6,480,000 - - (250,000 - 6,230,000 13.09.2007 08.08.2008%t0 0.584 049
05.08.2011
21,691,000 - - (977,000 (76,000) 20,638,000
At Total 35,591,000 - - (977,000 (876,000) 33,738,000
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3. BRARETE(HE) 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

RAFERRTTEE L RBAEH RN T

* BEREEZ REHE R AMEET
(L BRI AR I -

o ERRRIEZ T EEE A RS
B2 BERAD Th$2ﬁﬁﬁwﬁ
BryE-

x REARBERDASARE AR

RREDERELERBRER LA HHF}J_“

R G AR WE - BRELR
BT 0 B HART PR B 2 N A BN (B
RREEZFEARBEREREEE
HBENBERREDIITE - MET
15 B HA AT B0 B <2 A AT (B 2 AN P19
2o

RBAFERBRHIT AZIRE 2 ELR
&t 2 A F1EA1,808, oooﬁénﬁt¢$%
] 7O 7N 6 (A e RR B SR SRR #E 2 11 395,000
BIL(ZZZ/)\F : 661,000/87) - HE
“TEERE=ZA=+—HILEER LXK
BHELRE -

R-ZFZNF=ZA=t—-HBLFEARH
ZABIES N 2 BB AFETIR
RHAMZ —AALZEEEERRERH
BRRIGMHRIER AR - TRIIEHES
ZETENFZA=+T—HULFERRAZZ
B8R -

Notes to the reconciliation of share options outstanding during
the year:

* The vesting period of the share options is from the
date of grant until the commencement of the exercise
period.

*o The exercise price of the share options is subject to

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

***  The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at
the date of grant of the share options is the Stock
Exchange closing price on the trading day immediately
prior to the date of grant of the options. The price
of the Company’s shares disclosed immediately
before the exercise date of the share options is the
weighted average of the Stock Exchange closing prices
immediately before the dates on which the options
were exercised over all of the exercises of options
within the disclosure line.

The fair value of the share options granted in the prior
years, which were not fully vested, was HK$1,808,000
of which the Group recognised a share option expense
of HK$395,000 (2008: HK$661,000) during the year.
No share option was granted during the year ended 31
March 2009.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year ended 31 March 2008 was estimated
as at the date of grant, using a binomial model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used for the year ended 31 March
2008:

UGS Dividend yield 9.09%
TE AR 1R Expected volatility 43.69%

[ B 1) = Risk-free interest rate 3.87%
BN 2 T8 FER(F) Expected life of options (years) 3.89
f&EGBT) Share prices (HK$) 0.50

{Ef‘ﬁmﬁﬂéﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁriﬁﬁJﬂEﬁLi FH
BELBIEEE - YT RRRAREMRZTT
EFRER i‘;ﬁ%?ﬁi@&@%ﬁ;"i&%‘f%m*
KiBBZREKR  BERVA/ERER -

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data over the past one year and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
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34,

35.

B RRBREE (&)

RETERFERILET AMRHELRR
RENEMTE

REEER - A RFRIEET 85 33,738,000
MRITEBGCRIE - RIBEAQARITR
REEE - 2ETESR TELRIRERER
%£1733,738,000[ 8 A R BIFEINE B - B
$3,373,800/ B ST EHIMNIR AR R R AT 81T
= AT A2019,433,0008 ST D 4 (E -

R HmERIEB - AR RRIEE
#£33,738,00017 RIT{EE SRR AE - 4948
ERNEHAATEEITRGD2.82% °

i
(@) #*%HE

AR ENASE R 2
X 933 DER SO TS
NEZEERBZEARREDE
A e

AEBZEFRREERE-NAN=
FARRAZ A LT ATFTEITZ A
SESEMEE 2B QRN Z
HE - AXBMZFEROHMETZA
ARBNEEZERE -

34,

35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
33,738,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share
options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 33,738,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$3,373,800 and share
premium of HK$19,433,000 before issue expenses.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 33,738,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 2.82% of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date.

RESERVES
(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’'s reserves and
the movements therein for the current and
prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 41 to
42 of the financial statements.

The Group’'s special reserve represents the
difference between the nominal value of the
shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
the Group reorganisation prior to the listing
of the Company’s shares in 1993, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor.
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35. f#E(E) 35. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) AT (b) Company

RE  EAARE  REEH/
ReER  4ABR  EERE FE  (RER) b

Retained

Share Capital Share profits/

premium  Contributed ~redemption option (accumulated
account surplus reserve reserve loss) Total

i T TEL ThEL TEL TEL TEL
Notes HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

i At 31 March 2007 409,705 21,976 419 1,800 18,699 452,599

MBS E%  Equity-settled share option

ARERS arangements 34
¥k Issue of shares
EREE Loss for the year 1
BEE-ZZCE  Final 2007 dividend paid

RERE
RZZENE At 31 March 2008

=A=t+-H

IRER S 2B%  Equity-settled share option

kiR arrangements 34
ERRE Loss for the year 11

RZZENE At 31 March 2009
A=t

RARZBABBIERIE—NAN=
FARRRZEGD EWATATETT 2 &
ESEAMEBZHNERARRNDZA
FEBEARRZERNHMETE
RARBGEEZED - RIEER
ERRVE1981(&1E5T) » —HA
RIAEETIBRAT @ WBEARSRER
N2 RBREKBIEHDIR

BRARBRERBEEERDHART
ErBRARBEREZAFE FR
BTSRRI R 2.4 2 LA RR A7 A HE 0
MNRZzEHEEK - EHEEEE
REREITRER - WERRERER
I (ERR - SE AR LRRESD
Hg R WK - BEBREREE
e

409,710 21,976 419 2,461 18,560 453,126

- = - 395 - 395
- = - - (46,207)  (46,207)

409,710 21,976 419 2,856 (27,647) 407,314

The Company’s contributed surplus represents
the excess of the fair value of the shares of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation prior to the listing
of the Company’s shares in 1993, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange therefor. Under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, a company may make
distributions to its members out of the
contributed surplus in certain circumstances.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value
of share options granted which are yet to be
exercised, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payment transactions in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount
will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised,
or be transferred to retained profits should the
related options expire or be forfeited.
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36. HAEE 36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

HE-_ZZN\FZA=Z+—A8L
FEAN - —BIRBEERS([R
EANDEEBAZRAEE—H
BAR([HEADRBFDL - M
WEABRR—£A/E627,571%7T
(#94,895,000/870) 2 558 « R
AEBHEEAER —MHBHA=Z
TE+ - A=ZH 2 R&HE (1%
aEl) - KEERZBENR(Z
HE]) 3t HEATARER
REARERBR - WEERSEA
BERZWE - ABRT AR EZ
Wk T S 2 D B AR AR R BURRF 2
Ef e Ft - EARRSARE
REBER  ZXREAREETESE
H5{8100,000E 7T » WA KA F7FH
2 EMIBERE  BERME AR
(IREB&R]) -

ERNAHEBEIERATERRE
REBEOEE - WEAZRKRE
REARZBARIEL AR - B
BEANEZRRERAREHE
o Bt ARREZRAEEAL
AEHBR(—TENF &) -

(a)

During the year ended 31 March 2008, an
independent service provider (the “Plaintiff”)
issued a legal proceeding in Hong Kong against
a subsidiary of the Group (the “Defendant”)
and a claimed against the Defendant for a sum
of US$627,571 (approximately HK$4,895,000).
The Plaintiff alleged that the Defendant was
in breach of a service agreement dated 3
December 2004 (the “Agreement”) and failed
to make payments in accordance with the
Agreement (the “Claim”). In this connection,
the Defendant also filed a claim against the
Plaintiff and alleged that the Plaintiff was in
breach of the Agreement in failing to design and
develop the products in substantial conformance
to the functional specification as defined in the
Agreement. Accordingly, the Defendant made a
counterclaim against the Plaintiff for liquidated
damages in the sum of US$100,000 and other
damages to be assessed together with interests
and costs (the “Counterclaim”).

Based on the available evidence and subject to
discovery and expert evidence, the Defendant'’s
representing solicitor considered that there were
valid defences to the Claims and the Defendant
had a good chance of success in the Claim and
the Counterclaim. As such, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision is
required to be made (2008: Nil).
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36. WARBE(E) 36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)
(b) REER  EMEHRERFP 2 H MK (b) At the balance sheet date, details of other
REBEFBNOT : contingent liabilities in the financial statements

were as follows:

bin- ) VNG|
Group Company
“EERE ZTTN\F CZEBAE —TTN\F
2009 2008 2009 2008

TR TET TR TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

MEBEER TR Guarantees given to banks in
EREmST connection with facilities
RIT2HER granted to:
MBAR Subsidiaries - - 164,000 216,594
/N Associates 104 4212 - -
104 4,212 164,000 216,594
RZEZNF=ZA=+—0H " 2fA As at 31 March 2009, the banking facilities
RARRTRITHRERMER T2 granted to the subsidiaries subject to guarantees
SR1T#5 FARE 2 B) FA 915,428,000 given to the banks by the Company were utilised
B (ZZTZEJ)\F : 2,594,000 to the extent of approximately HK$15,428,000
BIL) c MABRAEBERmMES (2008: HK$2,594,000), and the banking
THERNRZRITERECHA facilities guaranteed by the Group to associates
#1104,0008 T(ZZTZ )\ F : were utilised to the extent of approximately
4,212,000/7T) © HK$104,000 (2008: HK$4,212,000).
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37. REHELTH 37.

AEERBEERERHERAEETET
BYMERBIBES - MECHEETHTD
—EF4F

RZZEZENF=R=+—H KEEHE
TAIBUEZ R EHERRARKLENES
R mHEREWEFENT

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office premises and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from
one to twenty years.

At 31 March 2009, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

rEE

Group
—EENF —ETNF
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
—FE R Within one year 11,087 7,910
RE-_FEFRF In the second to fifth years, inclusive 24,805 17,849

(BEERME)

iR E After five years 16,273 30,654
52,165 56,413

REER  ARBBETNEAKEHE
£

38. &g 38.

B EXPHRE37 2 R EMERHFFEIN - K
KSEREFAIAE TIEAESE

As at the balance sheet date, the Company had no
significant operating lease arrangements.

COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease arrangements
detailed in note 37 above, the Group had the following
capital commitments at the balance sheet date:

rEH

Group
—EEAE —ET)NF
2009 2008
FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000

BETHVERVERAS Contracted, but not provided for:

ME - BB MRE Property, plant and equipment 1,609 1,706

REER » ARBBEEAERASE -

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no
significant commitments.
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39. BEALXRS 39.

() KHRELSHBRREGESHFMN
RZIN MAFER - KEEBF TS
BERREALRS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following material transactions
with related parties during the year:

rEE
Group
—EETNEF —ET)NF
2009 2008
Notes FET FET
B =E HK$'000 HK$'000
RAEERE—BE QA Royalty expense charged by
W BN 2 {F A RE S an associate of the Group (i) 3,989 5,166
MBS ATEE &5 Purchase of products from an
associate (i) 4,740 4,505
MIEE - Notes:
(@) {50 FRABE 2 tH R AR A S — I (i) The royalty expense was calculated based on
BRFNAEANMLENE E the number of electronic handheld products
BFEMOBEME LR

i 6K 2 DI A Bt i A B) e
B /B8 2 RIFTET 3L 2 3 A R 1h o

sold by a subsidiary of the Group during the
year with the terms as stipulated in the royalty
agreement between the associate and that

7 e subsidiary.

() ABEARBEZERRE (i)
BB UATGTREBR,Y
DEIER R AT R A o

The purchase from an associate was made
according to the published prices and
conditions offered by the associate to its major

customers.
(b) TEEEREEABRM - (b) Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group:

—EBEAF —ET)NF
2009 2008
FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
LHIEEEH Short term employee benefits 13,482 13,535
EAXIFHME 2 484  Performance related incentive payments 20 65
EE@ELRNMHEEF Employee share option benefits 173 285
BARGTEIHE K Pension scheme contributions 462 454

YNEBEERAES  Total compensation paid to key
) b management personnel 14,137 14,339

EXEMeE - FHIBERMB®RE
BFES -

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.
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40. RERESZ2EMIE 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

FHENESMIERREEAZERABN The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

T~ financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are as
follows:
—EBEAF rEE
2009 Group
ERMEE Financial assets
BOFERZA
BRkzER ERR AfEE
EE-FEE W R SREE @zt
Financial
assets at fair
value through Available-
profit or loss for-sale
- held for  Loans and financial
trading  receivables assets Total
TR TExT TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At ERE Available-for-sale investments - - 26,094 26,094
Eilige Long term deposits - 1,558 - 1,558
[EWE S8 Trade receivables - 114,523 - 114,523
S AT R - Financial assets included in
meREMEK prepayments, deposits and
RRZEeREE other receivables - 42,7121 - 42,7121
e B 2 A B BR 3K Amounts due from associates - 3,738 - 3,738
el —& BB HIER Amount due from a joint-venture
partner - 1,680 - 1,680
BATERAERR Investments at fair value through
Z1RE profit or loss 40,890 - - 40,890
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments 596 - - 596
BeLBREEEEE Cash and cash equivalents - 227,296 - 227,296
41,486 391,516 26,094 459,096
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40. REHEoz2EMITAEE) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

—EEhEF REE
2009 Group
= =R Financial liabilities
RAFETA RE
BRizE® HRAHEZ
8 -BEER cHEE @Et
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through Financial

profit or loss liabilities at

- held for amortised
trading cost Total
FTHET THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BB SRR ENER Trade and bills payables - 78,256 78,256
JE — 2 EHEHI EEEER X Amount due to a jointly-controlled
entity - 96 96
B A E A R BR R Financial liabilities included in other
ErEEzeMAaRE payables and accruals = 14,972 14,972
TESBIA Derivative financial instruments 395 - 395
M EIRITIEE Interest-bearing bank borrowing - 15,428 15,428

395 108,752 109,147
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40. RERBEDZEMIAE) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)
—ETNF REE
2008 Group
SRVEE Financial assets
BATERA
Bagrsew BR Rk A E
BE-HIFEE PR PREE ok
Financial
assets at fair
value through Available-
profit or loss for-sale
- held for Loans and financial
trading  receivables assets Total
THIL THT TRT FET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AHEERE Available-for-sale investments - - 26,094 26,094
32k Long term deposits - 1,387 - 1,387
FEWE S8R0 Trade receivables - 145,485 - 145,485
5| ATEATIE - Financial assets included in
meREMEK prepayments, deposits and
ﬁz%@ﬁ@ other receivables - 39,896 - 39,896
FEH&H‘J%%’A Amounts due from associates - 3,402 - 3,402
e — Aé‘%’%ﬁtﬁﬁm Amount due from a joint-venture partner - 1,587 - 1,587
BATERAERR Investments at fair value through
A profit or loss 41,532 - - 41,532
fTEeMTE Derivative financial instruments 5,717 - - 5,717
BeRBE4%EIER Cash and cash equivalents - 252,165 - 252,165
47,249 443,922 26,094 517,265
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40. REHEoz2EMITAEE) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

—ETNF AEE
2008 Group
SN Financial liabilities
BAFERA Bize: 3!
Baizem  KEAHEZ
BE-BEEER TRBE #E
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through Financial

profit or loss liabilities at

- held for amortised
trading cost Total
FHT FHET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ENESERRENSRE Trade and bills payables - 106,517 106,517

B AE M E(T BE S R E R Financial liabilities included in
BEZERAR other payables and accruals - 18,686 18,686
fTESMTE Derivative financial instruments 3,775 - 3,775
MERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowing - 2,594 2,594
3,775 127,797 131,572
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40. REHEoz2EMITAEE) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

ARAT
Company
EWERE Financial assets
BERRERERR
Loans and receivables
—EEAE ZER)\F
2009 2008
FERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
M a R (MRE17) Interests in subsidiaries (note 17) 719,246 764,266
e B A B BR X Due from subsidiaries 3,000 3,000
FIRTENTIA - BE Kk Financial assets included in prepayments,
HEibEWERR 2 S EE deposits and other receivables 206 192
ReMREFEIEAER Cash and bank balances 188 89
722,640 767,547
EHas Financial liabilities
REBERATEZSRAE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
—EEAF ZEENF
2009 2008
FBT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERMIBATEZ(M3E17) Due to subsidiaries (note 17) 194,356 193,344
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41.

BHREEERERBERBE

AEETEcRTABRERE BKRES
R R EMENIRR - IR MEHER
N EZERR R EMEARR - ARK R

RITHEE -

AEECHRIEAEENEZRBAEER
% FERR - RBE SRR KINER
B EECRFEAEEERERBRAK
BT o

FERR

AEEzEERRIZXRAEERE ZIK
Ko REBERAEE EERERDEAE
AR EB2EF - R_ZFEAF=H
=+ HARREREEREE SRKE
BUEBIE57 % (—FF//\F : i#iB52%) ° fis
BUEPRELBLIMNER  EHEAR
SEEMNENEABERE - REEER
BRERE  FAEEEEEDZK—AA
B AEEBEEERE  FEEFMREM
BT o DARECRBREX R H5 ht Uk [l 380 A
87 o Wi - AEE R EHENSRER
W E 5 8RR 2 T [ W BRE - PARE AR BE T
e REEL R A RERRE - stitm
o ARBEERRLEEZEERRE
ZEEBRWARFEE -

HRAKEERRAIZEEBR 2R =T
EITEE  BMWEBRE/ERR

AEEEMeREE(REEReRAESE
BIEE AIHEERE RAFELAR
BRZBERETNTETIR)ZEERR
KEHOHTRE  MERZ&ES LRASE
MEFTHEZREE -

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly
comprise investments, trade and other receivables, cash
and short term deposits, trade and other payables, and
interest-bearing bank borrowing.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity
risk and foreign currency risk. The board reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade receivables. The Group has been largely
dependent on a small number of customers for
a substantial portion of its business. The top five
customers represent over 57% (2008: over 52%) of
the amount of trade receivables as at 31 March 2009.
The failure of these customers to make the required
payments could have a substantial negative impact
on the Group’s profits. In order to minimise the credit
risk, management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for the determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group regularly reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is properly managed and significantly
reduced.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-
for-sale investments, investments at fair value through
profit or loss and certain derivative instruments, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.
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41.

M EEERERERBEEE)

FERR ()

AEBEERBIZETNER BAR
B - IR AKEZ EWNE SRR ERM

k-

RAEEFESKAREESRARZER
B - EBERMBRERME24KE -

F =@k

AEEZAXRABRBR  FTEERAKEHZ
RBRITIEEBRE - AREEERAN R
Z B8 - WE R ERITHEBE - Kt
HFEzEk -  ANEERRARE ZFX
[ SR 1T 8 B A AR R T I T AR R e %
RIOTERENR_ZTNFOA-—THEZH
BE  HASEIEAEANERRA0
R EA KRR o

AEENRFERDES RS TAERE
EoiRER - ZILAEZHERIAR
SREE(MEKE SRR ZBIHER -
WRARLEBZRERERBNR °

AEBERARITHEER BOERESHE
MRBEEEREIRGTEE  R_ZENF
ZA=1t—R8  AEEZRITEE (AR
BHREMRR 2 EEREAE/EE) R
—FREH  AEEEERS - HERAK
SEEBERTE  AREZRITEELT
EXo

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk is mainly
arising in Korea, Japan and Hong Kong. There are
no significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group as the Group's trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group has limited exposure to interest rate risk
which relates principally to the Group's short term bank
borrowing. The Group mitigates the risk by monitoring
closely the movements in interest rates and reviewing
its banking facilities regularly. The Group has not used
any interest rate swap to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk as the directors consider the Group's exposure
to interest rate risk was not significant due to the low
balance of the bank borrowing and has been fully
settled on 20 April 2009.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of bank facilities. The Group's bank borrowing would
mature in less than one year as at 31 March 2009
based on the carrying value of borrowing reflected
in the financial statements. The directors of the
Group consider that the Group’s bank borrowing is
insignificant to the Group’s total assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Cont’'d)
BE-STAF=A=tBALEE

For the year ended 31 March 2009

41. HEREKBEEEERBIR(E) 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
FREBESER(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
REER - UEATARBIRFIERELE - The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities
TEESRBEZEFHBREOT as at the balance sheet date, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

AEE
Group
—EENF
2009

=S
EEX SPR=ER PRT=fEA @zt

On Less than 3 to less than
demand 3 months 12 months Total
TR THT TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EHESERREREE Trade and bills payables 28,983 45,500 3,773 78,256
H iR Other payables 7,790 7,093 89 14,972

e —HFZHERER Amount due to a jointly-
controlled entity 96 - - 96
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments - 395 - 395
MEBITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowing - 15,428 - 15,428
36,869 68,416 3,862 109,147
“ZTN\F
2008

=G ES
EExX  LR=EAR LRTZEA et

On Less than 3 to less than
demand 3 months 12 months Total
TR FET TET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ENESERRERER Trade and bills payables 42,335 62,280 1,902 106,517
Hit AR Other payables 9,886 8,634 166 18,686
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments - 1,277 2,498 3,775
K ERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowing - 1,297 1,297 2,594
52,221 73,488 5,863 131,572
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Notes to Financial Statements (Cont’'d)

HE_TThF-A=-t+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 March 2009

41.

M EEERERERBEEE)

REE SRR (E)
PN

REER  ARRERBBEZERRG R
BE—F(ZTT/\F : BB —F) -

ShEE B

AEEPERXZHEERER - ZFRAMRKA
LEBENMHEEXBE (BUNEER
BRON) o REBE B R D RUE 5 IR R E
NESEFMINESE - RZTTNF=
A=1—B8 AKEEILETERHAINE
B DURE AR KBS SN E P E 2 SN
R EZFEHIMNESNL A Y
DR IR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Company

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial
liabilities as at the balance sheet date was over one year
(2008: over one year).

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Certain trade receivables and payables of
the Group are denominated in foreign currencies. At
31 March 2009, the Group has entered into certain
forward currency contracts to reduce the foreign
currency exposures on Group’s overseas investments,
however, they did not meet the criteria for hedge
accounting.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

41. BHEBREEBERIEEGE) 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
S T B (48 ) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
NTRBBRERBERES TEHNBR The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
TOARBLEBEERZ SEAREEE) balance sheet date to a reasonably possible change in
HEH AR AEETAEE 2 g E (B the Renminbi and Japanese Yen exchange rates, with
BEEUHEERABEZ A FEZHMAE) - all other variables held constant, of the Group's loss

before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary
assets and liabilities).

SHEIL BAKRZ2S

Change in
Change profit/(loss)
in rate before tax
FET
% HK$'000
—EEhEF 2009
BETTH AT ST R (E If Hong Kong dollar weakens against:
AR Renminbi 5 4,510
H Japanese Yen 8 43
EBTRUNTEEERAE - If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against:
AR Renminbi 5 (4,510)
=] Japanese Yen 8 (43)
ZZETENF 2008
EBTHATEEEREME :  If Hong Kong dollar weakens against:
AR Renminbi 7 6,012
H Japanese Yen 10 1,593
EBRTTHUNTEEERTHE If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against:
AR Renminbi 7 (6,012)
= Japanese Yen 10 (1,593)
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41.

42.

M EEERERERBEEE)

EXEE

AEEZERER TERBEDRELRE
BB E  UHRBREZENRLE
AR EEBRIERBRREE -

AEBMEREEEARE - WREELEIR
ZEHFHRAE ERFRNABHLELR
B AEEXGABIRMN TRRZK
B MBEREMEARLETHRD - RE
EZTAF=ZA=1+—HIERZTEN
FZA=T-HIEERFE HBE KX

REBUARDEE(RBEERUREA
BIBERER - REEZBERERID L
EEFHBA— - HEARZRE L E
T

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2008.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio,
which is current assets divided by current liabilities. The
Group's policy is to maintain the current ratio over one.
The current ratios as at the balance sheet dates were as
follows:

AEE
Group
—EEAEF ZER)\F
2009 2008
FERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRENVEE Current assets 534,726 608,585
mEAE Current liabilities 158,414 190,282
)b =R Current ratio 3.38 3.20
Rz 2 HE 42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL

EPBHENR_ZZNFLANACDES
ERIERTETIE -

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 9 July 2009.
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Financial Summary

RN EW AR LBV R 2 HAR—& D o This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

- RESULTS
BE=A=1t—-HLEE
Year ended 31st March,
ZETRF ZTTREF ZTTAF —TT)N\F -3 -3

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
FHET FHT TAT FAT THER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g A Revenue 1,309,630 1,490,757 1,237,317 940,732 746,418
RHAnEF,/ (E8) Profit/(Loss) before tax 62,761 76,271 77,781 (16,579) (64,468)
g Tax 226 (21,880) (17,873) 1,684 (279)
REEEF/(F8)  Profit/Loss) for the year 62,987 54,391 59,908 (14,895) (64,747)
(R BT (E18) - Attributable to:
ARARERE A Equity holders of the
Company 62,158 54,391 59,324 (15,250) (64,673)
DR Minority interests 829 - 584 355 (74)
REEF/(E8E) Profit/(Loss) for the year 62,987 54,391 59,908 (14,895) (64,747)
EEHEE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R=A=+—H

As at 31st March,
—Z2ERF ZEERF —TTLF —TENF —ZEENF

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
FET FET FET FET FTER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEHBE Total assets 870,703 854,940 859,351 775,755 687,000
BEBE Total liabilities (264,852) (255,092) (250,181) (190,282) (158,414)
605,851 599,848 609,170 585,473 528,586

AABIEHEZHE A Equity attributable to

FEAR AR AE equity holders of the

Company 605,022 599,001 607,699 583,617 524,458
DE R Minority interests 829 847 1,471 1,856 4,128
605,851 599,848 609,170 585,473 528,586
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Particulars of Major Properties

REERZZTENF=A=T—BEBEEEEME Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at 31st

ZEIBWT March, 2009 are set out below:

a8 NE Rl FH
Name/location Type Lease term
HEME

Leasehold properties:

1. BENBEEMITEIR I & H
EMTEH L0218
£13-2455 T35 &
H P35 (5 AL
Workshop Nos.13 to 24 on 2nd Floor Industrial Medium-term lease
and Car Parking Space No. P3
on Basement, Sino Industrial Plaza
9 Kai Cheung Road
Kowloon Bay
Hong Kong

2. PRERERLEEETM I & 1]
REmRE
SHERRE
FHI ¥R
Dongguan Chang An Group Sense Industrial Medium-term lease
Electronics Factory
Fourth Industrial Zone, Wusha
Chang An, Dongguan
The People’s Republic of China
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